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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE” AND “GEM”, RESPECTIVELY)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the "Directors”) of Icon Culture
Global Company Limited (the “Company’, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules’) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein
or this report misleading.
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Financial Highlights
MBERE

2020 2019 Change

2020 & 20194 23

RMB’000 RMB'000 %

AR®TRT ARBTT %

Revenue Wan 268,612 150,099 79.0
Gross profit EH 104,904 (21,577) <-100.0
Profit/(Loss) for the year FWmA/ (EBE) 62,731 (42,289) <-100.0

Revenue for 2020 (RMB’000)
2020 FRFI(ARE T T)

Online media PR, marketing campaigns
advertising services and other services
R IR E SRS N EWHEBDR
11,935 H A AR
4.4% 1,280

0.5%

Traditional offline media
advertising services
EATAR T IERE
B R
255,397
95.1%

Revenue for 2019 (RMB'000)
2019 FR (AR FIT)

PR, marketing campaigns
and other services

Pl g

Online media
advertising services

M LEREERS
9693  ~_ H IR
6.5% 7,361

4.9%

Traditional offline media
advertising services
ERR TR
B RS
133,045
88.6%
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On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
am pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”).

MARKET REVIEW

China took the lead in restoring economic growth
globally after the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
disease 2019 (the “COVID-19"”) pandemic

In the early 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic suddenly broke out,
human lives and safety were threatened and their lifestyle had to
be changed significantly. Global markets and economies suffered
heavy losses and various industries were facing serious challenges.
The International Monetary Fund (IMF) issued the global economic
outlook report, which predicted that the global economy would
shrink by about 4.4% in 2020 and the gross domestic product
("GDP") is also expected to decline from US$87.75 trillion in 2019 to
US$83.84 trillion in 2020, with a loss of US$3.91 trillion. Among
them, the total estimated loss from the United States of America,
Brazil, India and Russia reached US$1.61 trillion, representing 41.2%
of the total loss of the world.

At the time of the global crisis, the Chinese government has taken a
series of strict and effective preventative measures to cope with the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and controlled the spread of the
COVID-19 pandemic in a shorter period. The Chinese government
has also implemented various policies that benefit the economy
and people, enabling the market to resume normal for work,
production and business. As a result, China has been the first of the
world’s major economies to resume positive economic growth.
According to the preliminary review of National Bureau of statistics
of China, even under the adverse impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, annual GDP in the PRC exceeded RMB100 trillion for the
first time in 2020, reaching approximately RMB101.6 trillion. It grows
by 2.3% at comparable prices over the previous year and the only
economy in the world with positive growth. The consumption
environment is continuing to improve and the recovery is
accelerating, making the PRC a rare success story in what are
otherwise very challenging times for the global economy.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

The growth rate of quarterly GDP in the PRC in 2020 shows
increasing trend quarter by quarter: the domestic economy
appeared a sharp decline in a short-term when the pandemic
became the most serious in the first quarter, with a decrease of 6.8%
in a quarterly basis; the pandemic tended to be stable since the
second quarter. All kinds of domestic production activities recovered
orderly and the quarterly GDP rises steadily, with quarterly GDP
increase of 3.2% as compared to the same period last year; the
growth rate of the third and fourth quarters are 4.9% and 6.5%,
respectively. According to the report published by China
Macroeconomic Forum (CMF), the macroeconomic parameters in
the PRC will continue to rebound in 2021, with the annual GDP
growth rate potentially reaching 8.1%. The sustained economic
recovery will also bring back consumer confidence. Meanwhile, with
the normalization of prevention and control measures, the offline
consumption potential will be released and the consumption and
service industries will continue to recover, which could become the
main driving force for the next stage of economic recovery.

Advertising market bottoms out and rebounds, and
digital transformation accelerates

The advertising and marketing expenses of various industries in
early 2020 were cautious due to the COVID-19 pandemic. However,
with the implementation of effective prevention measures in the
PRC, advertisers are willing to advertise with the economic recovery
gradually. According to the Digital Marketing Trend Report in China
2021 (the “Trend Report”) jointly published by the Miaozhen
Academy of Marketing Science, the Global Digital Marketing
Summit (GDMS) and the Media 360, the average growth rate of
overall corporate marketing expenses (including traditional and
digital media) in 2021 will reach 17%, which is significantly higher
than the actual expenses of 8% in 2020.

At the same time, more and more people have adapted to use the
internet to access to media for longer time, leading to a growing
number of advertisers tend to set their marketing budget for online
media and enter the area of digital advertising. According to the
Trend Report, digital marketing in the PRC is expected to grow by
20% in 2021 (2020: 16%), with 80% of high-budgeted advertisers
(advertisers with annual advertising budgets of RMB10 million or
above) said they would increase their total marketing budgets; 80%
of the new advertisers said they would increase their total
marketing budgets. For media resource types, mobile terminals
have become the main marketing choice of advertisers. 67% of
advertisers said they would increase their budgets for mobile
internet and 25% of advertisers are willing to increase their budgets
for NEW TV Mete Dand internet PC.

Note:

Nee Tt refers to the new home big TV screen with two-way, intelligent
and human-computer interaction functions, including smart TV OTT,

two-way cable TV DTV and IPTV.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an integrated multimedia advertising and marketing
solution service provider based in Guangzhou, the PRC and offers
advertising and marketing solutions covering (i) traditional offline
media including both Out-of-home (“OOH") and indoor advertising
platforms; (i) online media; and (iii) public relation (“PR"), marketing
campaigns and other services to our customers comprising
domestic and international brand owners, state-owned entities in
the PRC, advertising agencies and government authorities. Our
integrated multimedia advertising and marketing solution services
primarily focus on the formulation of advertising strategies for our
customers, and identifying and sourcing the most appropriate
advertising resources and formats to maximise the effectiveness of
our customers’ brands and product promotions, while promoting
the product sales of our customers.

For the Year, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB268.6 million, representing an increase in revenue by 79.0% as
compared with the revenue recorded for the financial year ended
31 December 2019 of approximately RMB150.1 million. The Group's
profit for the Year was approximately RMB62.7 million, representing
an increase in profit for the year by RMB105.0 million as compared
with the loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2019 of
approximately RMB42.3 million.

The increase in revenue and profit was mainly due to the revenue
of approximately RMB61.3 million arising from various contracts
entered into by the Group in 2019 during the Year. There were no
legal uncertainty regarding the Group’s performance obligations
and ability to collect the considerations. Excluding the
aforementioned effect, the Group’s revenue remained stable during
the Year as compared to that of last year, with the Group's efforts to
expand the number of customers as well as increase average
contributions from existing customers despite the challenges from
the COVID-19 pandemic when customers were more conservative
on their advertising expenditures.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

TRADITIONAL OFFLINE MEDIA ADVERTISING
SERVICES

The Group's traditional offline media advertising services included
the provision of advertising service in public transportation station
and hubs (including airports, high speed railways, subways and
buses, etc.), flat panels and LCD/LED displays in shopping malls,
commercial buildings and housing estates. During the Year,
revenue from traditional offline media advertising services for the
Year was approximately RMB255.4 million (2019: RMB133.0 million),
representing an increase by 92.0% year-over-year. Traditional offline
media advertising services remained the Group's largest business
segment, and accounted for approximately 95.1% of the total
revenue of the Group in 2020 (2019: 88.6%)

ONLINE MEDIA ADVERTISING SERVICES

In line with the shift in consumer behavior and habits, the Group
has also actively explored the internet advertising market in 2020,
expanded the number of internet advertising customers and the
advertising service portfolio (including online advertising and
operation services, etc) to meet both customer needs and user
behavior habits, further contributing to the Group’s revenue and
profits. During the Year, revenue derived from online media
advertising services segment was approximately RMB11.9 million
(2019: RMB9.7 million), representing an increase of 23.1% or
approximately RMB2.2 million. Such revenue represents
approximately 4.4% (2019: 6.5%) of the total revenue of the Group
during the Year. As a quick response to the customer needs
resulted from COVID-19, the Group is pleased to see that for
revenue from contracts we acted as an agent (in which the Group
used net method to account for the related revenue) increased by
219.4% to approximately RMB3.1 million during the Year (2019:
RMB1.0 million), further enhancing the gross profit of the Group by
the same amount. During the Year, the contract value increased by
185.4% to approximately RMB54.8 million (2019: RMB19.2 million)
for the online media advertising service contracts the Group acting
as an agent. The Group is steadily adjusting and executing its
strategies on online media advertising services to consolidate the
growth trend of this segment.
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In the meantime, the Group has won two domestic top creative
marketing awards during the Year, namely (i) the 2020 Kerui
Innovation Award for “"Huaxikou Xiaobaishua 8.28 Brand Day
E-commerce Sample” — Marketing Innovation Gold Award; and (i)
the Guangzhou internet Superstar Cultural Innovation Award in the
2020 South China E-commerce Gold Award Competition.

PR, MARKETING CAMPAIGNS AND OTHER SERVICES

The Group’s PR, marketing campaigns and other services include
devising strategies, formulating advertising solutions, co-ordinating
with media platforms as well as organising and executing
campaigns. During the Year, revenue from this segment amounted
to approximately RMB1.3 million for the Year (2019: approximately
RMB7.4 million). It accounted for approximately 0.5% of the Group's
total revenue during the Year (2019: 4.9%).

PROSPECTS

Nowadays, the “fragmented” information makes it harder to keep
users’ short attention span, driving up the customer acquisition
costs for brands. Giants in the industry have been restructuring
their marketing strategies one after another, focusing on “all
channels, all scenarios, and all links”.

As a seasoned industry practitioner with more than 10-year of
experience, the Group continues to provide our clients with
comprehensive solutions in advertising, promotion and digital
marketing, including brand strategies, sales stimulation, advertising
solutions, providing and purchasing advertising spaces, content
production, advertising platform coordination, organizing PR and
other promotional events, as well as evaluating the effectiveness of
advertising. Leveraging our ample industry experience, the Group,
on one hand, continues to help our traditional brand clients (such
as clients in the household & personal care products industry) make
the transition to digital marketing to create new sales scenarios and
explore wider sales channels; on the other hand, through the
combination of the Group'’s “Creativeness + Media” services, the
Group helps clients with new brands open showcasing channels in
traditional media and supports their development from “cyberstar”
to “long-lasting” brands.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

We will continue to explore the potential integration across
different segments. Empowered by intellectual property
collaboration, the Group is able to render integrated marketing and
planning solutions to help our clients achieve their branding goals
of "enhancing product visibility and branding” and their sales goals
of “increasing sales volumes and corporate revenue”, with both
excellent quality and efficiency.

Further strengthening our strategic cooperation with leading
industry research institutions, we will also increase our data research
to formulate more accurate, effective, insightful and creative
tailored solutions for our customers.

While vigorously developing its digital marketing methods, the
Group also keeps track of development in traditional advertising
channels. According to The World Advertising Research Center
(WARCQ)'s estimation for outdoor advertising expenditures in 2021,
outdoor advertising will be the fastest growing medium with a
growth rate of 20.2%. The Group has already taken the lead in
strategic deployment and successfully renewed the contract from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2024, that makes it the exclusive
agency for certain advertising spaces at Shenzhen Futian
Transportation Hub, consolidating our advantage in media
resources in high speed rail, a national “Strategic Highlight”, so as to
grasp the development opportunity in the Greater Bay Area of
China. Additionally, the Group will spare no effort to optimize and
integrate the media to continue raising our profit margins.

Meanwhile, the Group implements delicacy management for our
clients by transitioning our operating model from “continuous sales
expansions” to “continuous customer services”. Through continuous
cultivating and attracting talents, together with more refined and
standardized customer services, the Group will be able to render
better and tailored comprehensive services to our major and
potential clients.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWEDTT

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue
During the Year, the Group's revenue recorded an increase of 79.0%

to approximately RMB268.6 million (2019: RMB150.1 million).
Revenue disaggregated by major service lines were set as below:

RAFE  AEBHRZBEHOARE
26868 & L (2019F : AR 15018 8
JL) v 3B HN79.0%  WERIEEBRBERN D
AT

As percentage to
total revenue
HARRNBE DL
2020 2019 Change 2020 2019
2020 219 F & 2020 219 F
RMB’000 RMB'000 % % %
ARETR ARETR
Traditional offline media advertising  EHQ T EEES
services AR 255,397 133,045 920 95.1 88.6
Online media advertising services 48 L 188 E £ iR 75 11,935 9,693 23.1 4.4 65
— Acting as a principal —EREERMEA 8,786 8,707 09 3.3 58
— Acting as an agent —{ERREA 3,149 986 2194 1.2 07
PR, marketing campaigns and NE - EHEHR
other services H i R 1,280 7,361 (826) 0.5 49
Total B3t 268,612 150,099 79.0 100.0 100.0

The increase of traditional offline media advertising services was
mainly due to the revenue of approximately RMB61.3 million arising
from various contracts entered into by the Group in 2019 (the
“2019 Contracts”) was recorded during the Year when there were
no legal uncertainty regarding the Group's performance obligations
and ability to collect the considerations. At the same time, the
Group actively expanded to new customers and new demands,
while satisfying the needs of its existing customers, which further
contributed to the revenue. Excluding the aforementioned effect,
the Group's revenue from traditional offline media advertising
services remained stable during the Year as compared to that of
last year, with the Group’s efforts to expand the number of
customers as well as increase average contributions from existing
customers despite the challenge from the COVID-19 pandemic
when customers were more conservative on their advertising
expenditures.
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Thanks to the Group's efforts to expand its service portfolio to its
customers, the Group increased revenue from online media
advertising services by 23.1% to RMB11.9 million during the Year
(2019: RMB9.7 million). As a quick response to the customer needs
resulted from COVID-19, the Group is pleased to see that for
revenue from contracts we acted as an agent (in which the Group
used net method to account for the related revenue) increased by
219.4% to approximately RMB3.1 million during the Year (2019:
RMB1.0 million), further enhancing the gross profit of the Group by
the same amount. During the Year, the contract value increased by
185.4% to approximately RMB54.8 million (2019: RMB19.2 million)
for the online media advertising service contracts the Group acting
as an agent.

The decrease in revenue derived from PR, marketing campaigns and
other services was mainly resulted from the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales for the Year amounted to approximately RMB163.7
million (2019: RMB171.7 million). The decrease was mainly benefited
from the Group’s enhanced bargaining power over the purchase of
offline media advertising services.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit amounted to approximately RMB104.9 million for the
Year (2019: RMB -21.6 million). Gross profit margin amounted to
approximately 39.1% for the Year (2019: -14.4%) which was mainly
due to the revenue from the 2019 Contracts was recognized during
the Year and increased bargaining power from purchase of media
services.

Other revenue

Other revenue amounted to approximately RMB1.3 million for the
Year (2019: RMB1.2 million). Other revenue remained stable during
the Year as compared to 2019. Other revenue for the Year mainly
consisted of additional value-added tax deductions of RMB1.1
million (2019: RMBO0.6 million) and others.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB EAD AT

Selling expenses

Selling expenses amounted to approximately RMB2.6 million for
the Year (2019: RMB2.7 million). Selling expenses remained stable
during the Year as compared to 2019. Selling expenses for the Year
mainly consisted of staff costs of RMB1.4 million (2019: RMB0.9
million), promotion expenses of RMB0.5 million (2019: RMBO0.7
million) and others.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB17.3 million (2019: RMB28.0 million). The decrease was mainly
due to the non-incurrence of listing expenses during the Year (2019:
RMB17.8 million).

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately RMBO.1 million for the
Year (2019: RMB0.6 million). The finance costs were related to the
interest expense recognized under Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard 16 Leases. The details of the leased asset is set out in Note
12 to the consolidated financial statements.

Income tax

The Group recorded income tax expense of approximately RMB23.0
million for the Year (2019: income tax benefit of RMB9.3 million),
primarily due to the profit before taxation during the Year resulting
from the increase in gross profit.

Net profit/loss

Net profit amounted to approximately RMB62.7 million for the Year

(2019: net loss of RMB42.3 million). It was mainly due to the increase
in gross profit.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group's working capital and other capital requirements were
principally satisfied by cash generated from the Group's operations
and initial share offering.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net current assets amounted
to approximately RMB105.4 million (as at 31 December 2019: net
current liabilities: approximately RMB16.1 million), and its liquidity
as represented by current ratio (calculated by dividing current
assets by current liabilities) was 2.1 times at 31 December 2020 (as
at 31 December 2019: 0.9 times). Cash and cash equivalents
amounted to approximately RMB14.6 million (as at 31 December
2019: approximately RMB28.9 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any outstanding
loan capital issued or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans,
debt securities, borrowings or other similar indebtedness, liabilities
under acceptance, acceptance credits, debentures, mortgages,
pledges, charges, finance leases or hire purchase commitments or
guarantees. As at 31 December 2020, the Company did not have
any banking facilities. Therefore, gearing ratio is not applicable to
the Group.

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed
on GEM on 14 January 2020 (the “Listing Date"). There has been
no changes in the capital structure of the Group since then. The
share capital of the Company only comprises of ordinary shares.

As at the date of this report, the Company had 180,000,000 Shares
inissue.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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UPDATE ON MATERIAL LITIGATION

Further to the disclosure made in relation to the legal proceeding
(the "Proceeding”) in respect of the dispute relating to the
advertisement arrangement in certain metro trains and stations in
Shanghai between one of the suppliers (the “Plaintiff’) and
Guangzhou Icon Culture Media Investment Co., Ltd.* (J& N X 54 X
{b1E1H1EE B A7) (‘lcon Media’) (the “Arrangement’) in the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019,
the Company would like to provide some updates on the
Proceeding.

In December 2017, the Plaintiff launched a lawsuit against Icon
Media for alleged outstanding advertising fees payable by Icon
Media and damages for breach of contract in a total amount of
RMB7,342,420. The Plaintiff had also separately obtained an
injunction order to freeze Icon Media’s bank account for the
damages amount sought (the “Restricted Deposit”). [t was held
by the Shenzhen Futian People’s Court (%377 4& M & A KA )
(the “Court of First Instance”) that despite no formal contract was
signed, given the Plaintiff had partially provided certain services
under the Arrangement, to which Icon Media had knowledge
about and did not raise any objection, the Plaintiff should be
entitled to payment in respect of such services. On 6 June 2018, the
Court of First Instance ordered that Icon Media should pay the
Plaintiff an amount of approximately RMB1.62 million. On 20
September 2018, the Plaintiff lodged an appeal against Icon Media
with Shenzhen Intermediate People’s Court* AT A RIE
F) (the “Appellate Court’) and the appeal was heard on 5 June
2019. In 2020, the final judgement was released by the Appellate
Court and the Appellate Court affirmed and upheld the original
judgement of the Court of First Instance. It was held that the
Plaintiff should be entitled to payment in respect of the service
rendered as claimed, inclusive of any interest incurred. Accordingly,
lcon Media was ordered to pay for an additional damages of
approximately RMB340,000 for the breach of contract in addition to
the original damages payment of RMB160,000 ordered by the Court
of First Instance. The decision of the Appellate Court is final and is
not subject to appeal. As of 31 December 2020, the Company has
settled the above amount in accordance with the final judgment
ordered by the Appellate Court.
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In July 2020, the Restricted Deposit was released. The Board is of
the opinion that the judgement amount does not have any
material impact on the Group's financial position.

Except as disclosed above, the Group has not been involved in any
material litigation or arbitration during the Year. Since the Listing
Date and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors are not
aware of any material litigation or arbitration pending or
threatening the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Group did
not have any significant contingent liabilities.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

Individual companies within the Group has limited foreign currency
risk as most of the transactions are denominated in the same
currency as the functional currency of the operations in which they
relate.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES, JOINT VENTURES AND CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and capital assets during the Year.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group currently has no other plan for material investments and
capital assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB EAD AT

RISK MANAGEMENT

The risk management process includes risk identification, risk
evaluation, risk management measures and risk control and review.
The management is entrusted with duties to identify, analyze,
evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate risks associated with
any activity, function or process within its scope of responsibility
and authority. It endeavours to evaluate and compare the level of
risk against predetermined acceptable level of risk. For risk control
and monitoring, it involves making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address those that are not. The
management will develop contingency plans for possible loss
scenarios. Incidents and other situations involving loss or near-loss
will be investigated and properly documented as part of the effort
to manage risks.

Exposure to business risk arises in the normal course of the Group's
business, the business risk the Group may encounter had been
described below:

() the Group may not be able to retain or renew the existing
supply of advertising resources or obtain new advertising
resources for the customers, which may lead to loss of

customers and businesses;

(i) the expansion from traditional advertising to online
advertising may face tremendous competition;

(i) the customers may delay the settlement of the accounts
receivable, which may result in a certain credit risk;

(iv) the customers may decrease its advertising budget due to
the economy slow-down; and

(v)  the resignation of key persons.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2019: RMB30.0 million).
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS
As at 31 December 2020, the Group has no pledge of assets.
RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises employees as one of the valuable assets of
the Group and the Group strictly complies with the labour laws and
regulations in Hong Kong, PRC and other relevant jurisdictions and
regularly reviews the existing staff benefits for improvement.

The Group provides good quality services to the customers and
maintains a good relationship with them.

The Group is able to establish cordial and long-term business
relationship with the major customers. The Group also maintains
effective communication and develops healthy relationship with
the suppliers.

During the Year, except for the disclosure under the section headed
“Update on Material Litigation”, there was no other material dispute
or disagreement between the Group and its customers or its
suppliers.

USE OF PROCEEDS AND COMPARISON OF BUSINESS
OBJECTIVES WITH ACTUAL BUSINESS PROGRESS

On 14 January 2020, the Shares were initially listed on GEM by way of
share offer and the Company completed the share offer of its
45,000,000 Shares, comprising 4,500,000 public offer Shares and
40,500,000 placing Shares, with a par value of HK$0.01 each at an
offer price of HK$1.39 per Share. The net proceeds from the listing
(the “Net Proceeds") after deducting the underwriting commission
and related listing expenses paid by the Company, were
approximately HK$30.6 million. Having considered the business
operating environment and the development of the Group, the
Board resolved to change the use of the unutilised Net Proceeds as
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 11 September
2020 (the “Announcement’). Please refer to the Announcement for
details of the changes on use of the unutilised Net Proceeds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The table below sets forth the breakdown of the intended use and

TREFINAF IR A RPTFFIFBRRE

the timeline for utilisation of the Net Proceeds as at the date of the  FRiREAAR & B A RFREIX ¢
annual report:
Remaining
Revised balance of
allocation of Amount unutilised Expacted
Original  netproceeds utilisedupto  NetProceeds timeline to
intended  (asdisclosed 31 December asat use unutilised
use of net in the 2020 31December  NetProceeds
proceeds Announcement) (Note 3) 2020 (Note 3)
#2020 F
FiERE  EZ2020%F 128318 RAXDA
FBRE  FENET 12A31H RBARE MERERHE
RENEL PE(EN  CEHRELE REFE  EERAR
RERR AERER) (Hrit3) BT AR (Hit3)
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT TET FET T

Increase coverage of our exclusive OOH  BIBEREINE R IAE K 16,722 14,594 14,594 - Not applicable
and online advertising resources by EMNEEPIEBLES Tam
acquiring additional resources (Note 1) B BKIBE&E (f7t1)

Expand our business coverage in BARMNERSEZERD 8,882 - Notapplicable ~ Notapplicable ~ Not applicable
growing regions and spectrums of R REA IR RGN EE Tam TEm Tam
service offerings

Enhance the big data platforms (Note2)  BATFBHABIET A (H:2) 1,960 2960 1,182 1,778 December 2021

202112

General working capital —MREEES 3063 3063 3063 - Notapplicable

TER
Prepayment and/or depositofonline 48 FEEBRHOTEM &/ - 10010 4731 5279 December 2021
advertising resources 0215128
30627 30,627 23,570 7057
Notes: Hiet -
1. The Group has entered into agreements with suppliers for additional 1. AN&EEE B H BB AT % ARSI

exclusive OOH and online advertising resources.

2. The Group has entered into agreements with strategic partners and 2.
started to purchase data to revamp the big data platforms. The
Group's optimized big data platform has been under trial operation.
Related training has been provided to the staff to improve our

customer services.

3. The Net Proceeds were used and are proposed to be used according 3.

to the intentions previously disclosed.
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MEASURES TAKEN IN RESPONSE TO THE IMPACT OF
THE COVID-19 OUTBREAK

The COVID-19 pandemic since early 2020 has brought additional
uncertainties to the Group’s operating environment. Most advertisers
hold a cautious attitude towards their advertising expenditure,
especially OOH. The significant reduction of transport, physical
activities, human interaction and business activities during the
lockdown in the first quarter of 2020 have adversely impacted the
demand for OOH advertising. Therefore, revenue generated from
OOH advertising, including a variety of the exclusive advertising
resources and offline PR as well as marketing campaigns recorded a
drop in performance. However, with the implementation of effective
prevention measures in the PRC, advertisers are willing to advertise
with the economic recovery gradually, bringing new opportunities
for the Group. During the Year, the Group’s clients’ demand for TV
and internet advertising increased steadily.

The Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the COVID-19
outbreak to the developments on the Group's business and has put
in place contingency measures.

These contingency measures include:

1 Properly arrange employees to cooperate with government
guidelines to take preventive measures. As of the date of this
report, the Group has not found any employee infected by the
COVID-19;

2 Reduce unnecessary business travel plans and unnecessary
costs and expense;

3 Communicate with the Group's clients to adjust the placement
plans according to the clients’ needs;

4 Actively develop client’s need on the online advertisement, and
increase the revenue amount and proportionate of online
advertisements; and

5 Adjust strategies and reallocate the use of the unutilised Net
Proceeds from “Increase coverage of the exclusive OOH and
online advertising resources by acquiring additional resources”
and “Expand the business coverage in growing regions and
spectrums of service offerings” to “Enhance big data platforms”
and "Prepayment and/or deposit of online advertising
resources” in order to strengthen the ability to satisfy the
customers’ demand with respect to online advertising and
achieve a sustainable business growth and generating long
term benefits for the Shareholders.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EENEAEHEEBRREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (/& F3%), aged 39, is an executive Director,
founder and chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”). He joined
the Group in June 2009 and is mainly responsible for the overall
strategic planning and business direction of the Group. He was
appointed as a Director on 24 April 2019 and re-designated as an
executive Director and Chairman on 31 May 2019.

Mr. Chow has over 14 years of experience in the media industry.
From July 2006 to May 2009, he served as the executive director of
Australian New Express Daily* CEMETIRHR), where he was
responsible for formulation and implementation of operational and
investment plans of the company. In January 2010, he joined
KINGOLD Group Co., Ltd.* ((BE &£ B BR A F]) ('KINGOLD"),
which was a majority-controlled company (within the meaning of
the GEM Listing Rules) and served as the vice president of the real
estate department where he fully participated in planning, design
and management. In May 2014, Mr. Chow was promoted to director
and chief executive officer of KINGOLD, where he was responsible
for the overall strategic planning, business direction and
management of the operations of KINGOLD.

Mr. Chow obtained his bachelor's degree of design in interior and
spatial design from the University of Technology Sydney, Australia
in March 2011.

Mr. Chow is a controlling shareholder as prescribed by the GEM
Listing Rules of the Company (the “Controlling Shareholder’), as
well as a director and the sole shareholder of Shining Icon (BVI)
Limited (“Shining Icon”) and Sense One Limited ("“Sense One”"),
both of which are our Controlling Shareholders.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Chow has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have

been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan (£2BE 3 ), aged 43, is an executive Director. She
joined the Group in July 2016 and is mainly responsible for the
overall strategic planning, business direction and management of
the operations of the Group. She was appointed as a Director on 31
May 2019 and re-designated as an executive Director on the same
day.

Ms. Cai has over 19 years of experience in the media industry.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cai served in certain managerial roles
in several private companies in the PRC. From June 2001 to March
2005, she served as general manager of the marketing department
of Guangdong New Express* (& 3 7 IR ¥R #L), where she was
responsible for formulating business policies, marketing promotion and
business development. From February 2006 to January 2007, she served
as deputy general manager cum general manager of the sales
department of Guangdong Yaxin Broadcasting Co,, Ltd* (& & 7
XL EHE AR A 8)), where she was mainly responsible for its
business operations and da||y management. From February 2007 to
December 2015, she was the senior vice president in the sales

department of Visionchina Media Group Co., Ltd.*
(ERBFEEEEB R QA (previously known as V|5|onch|na

Digital Mobile Television Co,, Ltd. (ERBFTEHERBRA
which was a company controlled by Visionchina Media Inc., a
company listed on NASDAQ (NASDAQ ticker: VISN) from December
2007 to April 2017, where she was responsible for formulation and
implementation of development strategies and sales management
of the South China regional markets.

Ms. Cai obtained a master's degree in business administration from
South China University of Technology, the PRC in December 2016.

Ms. Cai is also the sole director and the sole shareholder of Focus
Wonder Limited (“Focus Wonder”), one of the substantial
shareholders of the Group (as prescribed by the GEM Listing Rules).

Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Cai has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEEREEN

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek ( 25 ), aged 38, is an executive Director.
He joined the Group in July 2009 as general manager and was
promoted to director in July 2016. Mr. Lau is mainly responsible for the
overall daily operation and management of the Company, including
establishing the management system, designing the development
strategy and optimizing the organizational structure of the
Company. He was appointed as a Director on 31 May 2019 and re-
designated as an executive Director on the same day.

Mr. Lau obtained his bachelor’s degree in industrial design from
The University of New South Wales, Australia in May 2009.

Mr. Lau is also the sole director and the sole shareholder of Master
Connection Limited (“Master Connection”), one of the substantial
shareholders of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Lau has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Liang Wei (27#]), aged 49, is an executive Director, chief executive
officer (the “Chief Executive Officer”) and the compliance officer.
She joined the Group in June 2017 and is mainly responsible for the
overall strategy implementation, business development and
management of the operations of the Group. She was appointed as
a Director on 31 May 2019 and re-designated as an executive
Director on the same day.

Ms. Liang has over 21 years of experience in business management.
From January 1992 to March 1996, she served as a programmer in
China Shipbuilding Industry Corporation 714 Institute* (4 Bl 5 A
ETSEQFEE—MIAITAT), where she was responsible for
the construction and maintenance of the company’s database.
From October 1995 to December 2003, she worked at the strategic
marketing department of Yonyou Software Co,, Ltd.* (i & BX{4R%
A BR A A]). From April 2006 to October 2016, she served as the
senior vice president of Visionchina Media Group Co., Ltd* (Z£4% (&
&£ B AR A F]) (previously known as Visionchina Digital Mobile
Television Co,, Ltd* (IR FHBENEIR AR A F])), which was a
company controlled by Visionchina Media Inc., a company listed on
NASDAQ (NASDAQ ticker: VISN) and from December 2007 to April
2017, where she was responsible for the formulation of
development strategy, establishment of sales management system
and policies, market analysis, product promotion, and supervising
advertising sales activities in major sales region. From October 2016
to March 2017, she served as the vice president of Shanghai
Conservation Advertising Co,, Ltd* (E /B <F1E E S B R R 7)),
where she was responsible for the formulation of project
management system and managing costs and revenue.

Ms. Liang obtained a master’s degree in international business
administration from the University of Northumbria at Newcastle,
United Kingdom in November 2005. She has obtained a
certification of specially invited jury of 2019 Creative International
Innovation Festival and jury of 2020 Effie Awards Greater China. Ms.
Liang was an awarded Person of the Year of E-marketing in the
iReserch Marketing Awards 2020.

Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Liang has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  For identification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEEREEN

Mr. Liu Biao (2l £), aged 41, is an executive Director. He joined
the Group in July 2009 and is mainly responsible for the overall
business development and sales management of the Group. He
was appointed as a Director on 31 May 2019 and re-designated as
an executive Director on the same day.

Mr. Liu has 20 years of experience in sales and business
management in the media industry. From June 2000 to December
2006, he served as sales manager at Guangzhou Aishidai
Advertising Co., Ltd.* (BB M ™ X B E & B R A 7)), where his
duties were developing and implementing efficient sales network
and maintaining customer relationships. From August 2007 to
January 2008, he served as the planning manager at Ego
Information Technology Group Co, Ltd* (E/MNEEm 15 B EHEEE
BBR A 7)), where he was responsible for the planning, organisation
and implementation of marketing activities, product development,
analysing sales and market development.

Mr. Liu obtained his diploma in chain management from
Guangzhou Jinrong Specialist College* (BN & B (£ 20T ), the
PRC in July 2004.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Liu has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have

been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster (ZJK#), aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. He is
responsible for supervising the Group’s compliance, corporate
governance matters and providing independent judgment and
advice to the Group.

Mr. Lee has more than 17 years of experience in the accounting and
finance industry. From September 2002 to June 2004, he worked as
an accountant at KPMG in Hong Kong and subsequently from July
2004 to June 2005, he worked as a senior accountant in the audit
and risk advisory service division at KPMG in Sydney, Australia. From
June 2005 to March 2011, he was the associate vice president of
structured finance at GE Capital. From April 2011 to May 2012, he
also served as the assistant vice president of syndicated finance at
the institutional banking group of DBS Bank Ltd in Hong Kong,
where he was responsible for the development of transaction
structure and assessment of loan distribution risk. From May 2012
to October 2017, he served as senior vice president, head of
syndicated finance department of China Minsheng Banking Corp,,
Ltd., where he was responsible for departmental management,
including business planning and recruitment of departmental staff.
From May 2016 to October 2017, he also served as the director of
Asia Pacific Loan Market Association Limited. From October 2017 to
April 2018, he was the vice president cum chief investment officer
of Carnival Group (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of
Carnival Group International Holdings Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 996). From April 2018 to
September 2019, he has been serving as the managing director in
the financing department of Fortune Fountain Capital Limited,
where he was responsible for the group’s overseas equity and debt
financing business, formulating financial strategies. Since April 2020,
he has been serving as the senior director in the credit investment
& corporate finance department of GAW Capital Advisors Limited,
where he was responsible for provision of private credit in the real
estate market. Mr. Lee has been a certified practicing accountant
and a member of CPA Australia since September 2005. Since
December 2018, Mr. Lee has been a Type 1 (dealing in securities)
licensed representative and he has been licensed to carry on
regulated activities for Cachet Asset Management Limited from
September 2019 to January 2020. Since October 2020, Mr. Lee has
been has been licensed to carry on regulated activities for Gateway
Capital (Hong Kong) Limited.

Mr. Lee obtained his bachelor’s degree in commerce from the
University of New South Wales, Australia in April 2002.
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ESNEREEEREEN

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Lee has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (FEZH}), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. She is
responsible for supervising the Group’s compliance, corporate
governance matters and providing independent judgment and
advice to the Group.

Ms. Tam has nearly 26 years of experience in the accounting and
finance field. From August 1994 to October 1997, she was an
accountant at DraftWorldwide Ltd, where she was responsible for
managing financial matters. From October 1997 to May 1999, she
also worked as an accountant at Baker Norton Asia Ltd, where she
was mainly responsible for financial matters. From June 1999 to
November 2000, she was a senior accountant at World Pioneer Ltd,
where she was responsible for setting up the accounting system
and managing the accounting functions including preparation of
financial forecasts and management reports, and performing
analysis. From November 2000 to March 2001, she was the financial
accountant and subsequently from March 2001 to October 2003,
she served as the finance and administration manager at Infoserve
Technology Hong Kong Ltd, where she was responsible for the
management of finance, administration and human resources
matters. From August 2004 to March 2007, she was the finance
manager and subsequently the group finance manager at Heal
Force Development Limited, where she was responsible for
compliance and management of the group finance department.
From April 2007 to September 2013, she was the head of
compliance and corporate affairs of NetDragon Websoft (Hong
Kong) Limited and the company secretary and authorised
representative of NetDragon Websoft Holdings Limited (previously
known as NetDragon Websoft Inc.), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0777). From October 2013
to February 2014, she was the vice president of management
centre of 91 Wireless Websoft Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Baidu Inc,, a company listed on NASDAQ (NASDAQ ticker: BIDU),
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

where she was responsible for supervising and managing the
finance, legal, human resources, internal control, government
relationship and administration departments. From September
2014 to March 2018, she was an independent non-executive
director and chairlady of the audit committee and member of the
nomination committee of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd,, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1527). Ms. Tam is a member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April
2002 and a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since November 2006.

Ms. Tam obtained a bachelor's degree in business accounting from
University of Lincolnshire and Humberside, United Kingdom in April
2000, and a master’s degree in educational counselling from The
Education University of Hong Kong in November 2018.

Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Tam has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

Mr. Tian Tao (&), aged 63, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. He is responsible for
supervising the Group's compliance, corporate governance matters
and providing independent judgment and advice to the Group.

From February 1999 to November 2015, Mr. Tian was the vice general
manager of CVSCTNS Research Co Ltd (KR TSR D BRA
&]). From November 2015 to June 2017, he was the president of
Zhongguang Xincheng Information Technology Co,, Ltd* (A & 15
Bz BRI D A R A A). From July 2017 to August 2018, he
was the president of the Beijing office of Nielsen- CCData Media
Research Services Co, Ltd* (JER AR BIE N BIERE AR A A7)
it = % A A)). Since September 2018, he has been serving as the
president of Zhongguang Rongxin Media Consulting (Beijing) Co.,
Ltd* (P EREENHEAALR) BRAF)).

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Tian has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have
been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liang Anqi (R Z#), aged 34, joined the Group in September
2017 and was promoted to chief supervisor (online and
entertainment) in May 2019. Mr. Liang is primarily responsible for
the intellectual property matters and entertainment business of the
Group.

Mr. Liang has over 11 years of experience in the media industry.
From April 2009 to March 2015, he worked at Phoenix Legend
Group Of IMC* (B R BBV EH B A FEE B R A 7)), where he
was responsible for media strategic planning. From April 2015 to
October 2016, he was employed by Shenzhen Fangsheng Human
Resources Service Co,, Ltd* (B F A T ERREER R A)).
From October 2016 to September 2017, he was the deputy
strategic director of the brand business department of EJAM
GROUP Co, Lid* (B ESBEEEBR KD BRE A F]), a company
whose shares are quoted on the NEEQ (stock code: 834498), where
he was responsible for promoting business projects, formulating
promotion strategy and organising media and internal resources.

Mr. Liang completed a course on power plant thermal operation
and installation held by Guangdong University of Technology, the
PRC and graduated in June 2008.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Liang has not held any directorship in
any other public companies the securities of which are or have

been listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.

*  Foridentification purpose only
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Ms. Cristin Kuang (B %), aged 43, joined the Group in December
2020 as Vice President, Sales & Marketing. She is responsible for
account sales & marketing management, leads team to deliver
assigned growth ambition and supports Ms. Liang in organization
management.

Ms. Kuang is a seasoned marketer with over 20 years marketing
experience including various areas like digital marketing, brand &
consumer marketing management, professional marketing and retail
customer marketing, etc. in top multi-national companies. Proven
record showed her roles in leading digital transformation which
significantly improve media utilization, turning around several
declining brands back to growth, developing effective structure to
improve organization efficiency, and establishing digital marketing
capability framework which facilitates growth of the team. She also
led her team winning series important marketing industry awards,
like China Great Wall Advertising Awards (4 B &2 &3 £%), ROI
Marketing Awards (£ 1% & &5 #¥), Golden Mouse Digital Marketing
Awards (& BARBIFIL L2 H28), etc.

She has ever been as Digital Commerce Marketing Director,
Category Director for China Mint Category, Brand Leaders for series
of famous brands like FIVE Gum (5H & #%), SKITTLES Confectionery
(RZHLHE), PIMPOM Lollipop (B Z1EEEEEEHE), TATA Bubble Gum (X
AIBIBHE), EXTRA Gum (253 0 & HE), etc. in Mars Wrigley China
Ltd GHESETHE (R B) A BR 2 7)), as well as taking important roles in
Mead Johnson Nutrition China Ltd (EEER&&EmFB)BRA
A)), Kimberly-Clark China Ltd (£/AF)(F B) B R 2 7)) and Avon
China Ltd (¥E35 (B AR A A)).

She is an active learner and has strong willingness to explore more
in life. Ms. Kuang has obtained a certification of Jury of 2019-2020
Effie Awards Greater China. She is a Qualified Montessori Teacher
and a Chinese Financial Planner. Ms. Kuang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Economic from Zhongshan University with major in
Marketing, and PADI Advanced Open Water Diver.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

ESNEREEEREEN

Ms. Yi Yang (#5 ZE), aged 36, joined the Group in October 2020 as
the finance controller. Ms. Yang is mainly responsible for the listed
company affairs, risk management, corporate internal control and
internal audit.

Ms. Yang started her career as an accountant in KPMG Guangzhou
since 2007 until late 2011. Her clients included listed companies in
Hong Kong, China and the United States of America. From April
2012 to October 2018, Ms. Yang joined Health and Happiness (H&H)
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1112) and worked as a financial
analyst and subsequently the Group Reporting Manager,
responsible for the financial reporting matters of the company.
From October 2018 to September 2020, Ms. Yang served as a senior
manager in China Beststudy Education Group, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3978),
responsible for financial accounting and reporting, internal control
and compliance, as well as merger and acquisition activities. Ms.
Yang has more than 13 years of experience in finance, risk
management and internal control and extensive working
experience in fast moving consumer goods, retail and education
industries.

Ms. Yang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Management School in
Sun Yat-Sen University in 2007. She was accredited as a Certified
Public Accountant (non-practising) by The Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2010 and member of ACCA since
2012.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tung Wing Yee (E%818) is a senior corporate secretarial manager
of Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited. Ms. Tung has
extensive experience in the corporate secretarial field, audit and
assurance, financial management and corporate finance, gained
from her working experience with an international accounting firm
and a number of listed companies in Hong Kong. She is a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a Certified Practising Accountant of the CPA Australia. Ms. Tung
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from the
University of Western Sydney, Australia in 2002 and a bachelor’s
degree in commerce from the University of Canberra, Australia in
1994,
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The Board is pleased to present this Report of the Directors
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are mainly engaged in provision of integrated
multimedia advertising and marketing solution services based in
Guangzhou, the PRC and offer advertising and marketing solutions
covering (i) traditional offline media including both OOH and
indoor advertising platforms; (i) online media; and (iii) PR, marketing
campaigns and other services to the customers comprising brand
owners, state-owned entities in the PRC, advertising agencies and
government authorities. The integrated multimedia advertising and
marketing solution service primarily focused on the formulation of
advertising strategies for the customers, and identifying and
sourcing the most appropriate advertising resources and formats to
maximise the effectiveness of the customers’ advertisements.

An analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the Year is
set out in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” in this annual
report and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and relationships with employees will
be disclosed in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group, indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s businesses and other relevant
information, are disclosed in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis section”. Such discussion forms part of this “Report of the
Directors”.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the audited consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for 2017 to 2020, as extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out on page 220 of
this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company and
details of the shares issued during the Year are set out in Note 21 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.

KEY RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder
engagement via different channels, the stakeholders are
encouraged to express their opinions regarding the environmental,
social and governance policies of the Group. The Group maintains
strong relationships with its employees and offers them with safe
working environments. The Group has enhanced cooperation with
its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services to
its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

Further details are set out in the "Management Discussion and

Analysis” section and the"Environmental, Social and Governance
Report“of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and is committed to becoming an environmentally-
friendly corporation. Details of the environmental, social and
governance policies and performance during the Year are disclosed
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”of this annual
report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and that the risks of non-compliance with
such requirements. To the best of the Directors’ knowledge,
information and belief, and having made all reasonable enquiries,
save as disclosed in the section headed “Update on Material
Litigation” in the section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”,
the Group has complied in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group. During the Year, there was no material
breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws and regulations
by the Group.

The Group also complies with the requirements under the GEM
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong (the "SFO") for the disclosure of
information and corporate governance.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group did not issue any debenture as of the date of this annual
report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in “Share Option Scheme” as set out on pages 53
to 56 of this annual report, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Group, or existed during the Year.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the Year (2019: RMB30.0 million).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Cayman Islands
Companies Law, amounted to approximately RMB70.9 million. Such
amounts may be distributed provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 88.4% of the total sales for the Year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 40.3%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
42.4% of the total purchases for the Year and purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 15.3%.

The Directors confirm that none of the Directors, their respective
close associates or any Shareholder (who or which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Shares as at
the date of this annual report), has or had any interest in any of the
five largest suppliers or customers for the Year.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 43 employees (2019: 43).
They are all located in Guangzhou, the PRC. The number of
employees employed by the Group varies from time to time
depending on need. To capture the growth of the online
advertising, the Group has recruited additional employees who
have the expertise in online advertising services. In addition,
members of the senior management team had exerted efforts on
the development of the Group's online advertising services.

Employees’ remuneration is determined based on their
responsibilities, qualifications, performance, experience and
seniority. The Group's standard remuneration package may include
salary, discretionary bonus, benefits in kind and incentive. The
remuneration policy and package of the Group’s employees are
periodically reviewed.

Compensation of key executives of the Group is reviewed by the
Company’s remuneration committee which is based on the Group's
performance and the executives’ respective contributions to the
Group.

The remuneration of Directors and members of senior
management is determined based on the duties, responsibilities,
experience, skills and time commitment, as well as the performance
of the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme on 11 December
2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”) as an incentive to the Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

The total remuneration cost incurred by the Group for the Year was
RMB9.5 million (2019: RMB8.6 million).
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Report of the Directors
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group was
entered into or existed during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Material related party transactions entered into by the Group for
the Year are disclosed in Note 23 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, the Group had no other connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which fell to be
disclosed in accordance with the provisions under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules in relation to the disclosure of connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that all related party transactions during the
Year were conducted after arm’s length negotiations, fair and
reasonable, on normal commercial terms and were not more
favourable to those offered by the Group to other independent
third parties for transactions of similar nature.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-Exempted Continuing Connected Transactions
(IICCTII)

(1)

Provision of advertising services by the Group to
KINGOLD and its subsidiaries (together, “KINGOLD
Group”)

The Group has been providing media advertising services to
KINGOLD Group as part of its usual course of business since
December 2014 and throughout the Track Record Period (as
defined in the prospectus of the Company dated 30
December 2019) (the “Prospectus’).

KINGOLD, a limited liability company established under the
laws of the PRC, is a majority controlled company indirectly
held by Mr. Chau Chak Wing (JE/Z48) (‘"Mr. Chau’), father of
Mr. Chow who is the Controlling Shareholder, executive
Director and Chairman of the Board. As such, each of the
members of KINGOLD Group is an associate of Mr. Chow and
thus a connected person of the Company under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Chow is also one of the directors
of KINGOLD.

The scope of services includes but not limited to, sourcing of
advertising resources, placement of advertisements, strategic
planning, graphic designs, news editorial and content
advertorial in relation to brand promotion of hotels,
restaurants, residential and commercial properties developed
by KINGOLD Group. Such advertisements were placed on
various online platforms and media resources such as LCD
flat-panel displays and frame displays located at elevators and
lobbies in commercial buildings owned by independent third
parties and shopping malls, commercial buildings and
housing estates owned by KINGOLD Group.
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On 16 December 2019, the Group entered into an advertising
services framework agreement (the “"KINGOLD Group
Advertising Services Framework Agreement’) with
KINGOLD (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) for a term
commencing from the Listing Date and ending on 31
December 2022 (subject to early termination pursuant to the
terms of the KINGOLD Group Advertising Services Framework
Agreement). Pursuant to the KINGOLD Group Advertising
Services Framework Agreement, the Group will provide
multimedia advertising services, including but not limited to
media advertising services, advertising materials production
services and event organisation and planning services (the
"KINGOLD Advertising Services”) to KINGOLD Group.

The KINGOLD Group Advertising Services Framework
Agreement is a framework agreement which provides the
mechanism for the provision of the KINGOLD Advertising
Services described therein. Separate agreements will be
entered into between both parties to provide for the terms
and conditions of the specific transactions in accordance with
the principal terms set out in the KINGOLD Group Advertising
Services Framework Agreement.

Having taken into consideration the historical service fees
charged by the Group to KINGOLD Group, the proposed
annual caps in relation to the provision of the KINGOLD
Advertising Services under the KINGOLD Group Advertising
Services Framework Agreement for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2022 will not exceed RMB22,000,000.

The aggregate amount of service fees payable by KINGOLD
Group to the Group in respect of the provision of the
KINGOLD Advertising Services for the Year amounted to
approximately RMB1,393,000.
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(2)

Provision of advertising services by the Group to
Guangdong Chaohuang Restaurant Co., Ltd.* (&5 &}
ERFEAR 2 TF) (“Chaohuang Restaurant”)

The Group began to provide multimedia advertising services
to Chaohuang Restaurant in August 2013 as part of the
Group's ordinary and usual course of business.

Chaohuang Restaurant, a limited liability company established
under the laws of the PRC, is a majority-controlled company
indirectly held by Mr. Chau, father of Mr. Chow who is the
Controlling Shareholder, executive Director and Chairman of
the Board. As such, Chaohuang Restaurant is an associate of
Mr. Chow and thus a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Chow is also
one of the directors of Chaohuang Restaurant.

On 16 December 2019, the Group entered into an advertising
services framework agreement (the “Chaohuang Restaurant
Advertising Services Framework Agreement’) with
Chaohuang Restaurant for a term commencing from the
Listing Date and ending on 31 December 2022 (subject to
early termination pursuant to the terms of the Chaohuang
Restaurant Advertising Services Framework Agreement).
Pursuant to the Chaohuang Restaurant Advertising Services
Framework Agreement, the Group will provide multimedia
advertising services, including but not limited to media
advertising services, advertising materials production services
and event organisation and planning services (the
“Chaohuang Advertising Services”) to Chaohuang
Restaurant.

The Chaohuang Restaurant Advertising Services Framework
Agreement is a framework agreement which provides the
mechanism for the provision of the Chaohuang Advertising
Services described therein. Separate agreements will be
entered into between both parties to provide for the terms
and conditions of the specific transactions in accordance with
the principal terms set out in the Chaohuang Restaurant
Advertising Services Framework Agreement.

*  Foridentification purpose only

(2)

*
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Having taken into consideration the historical service fees
charged by the Group to Chaohuang Restaurant, the
proposed annual caps in relation to the provision of the
Chaohuang Advertising Services under the Chaohuang
Restaurant Advertising Services Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2022 will not
exceed RMB200,000.

The aggregate amount of a service fees payable by
Chaohuang Restaurant to the Group in respect of the
provision of the Chaohuang Advertising Services for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB56,000.

For details on the terms of the above continuing connected
transactions, please refer to “NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS" in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” to the Prospectus.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed
such transactions have been entered into: (1) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; and (2) on normal
or better commercial terms; and (3) according to the relevant
agreements governing them in terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Confirmation of the auditor

KPMG, the Company's independent auditor (the “Auditor”)
was engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected
transactions in accordance with International Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note 740
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “Auditor’s
Letter’). KPMG has issued its unqualified letter containing its
findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in
accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy
of the Auditor's Letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.
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Conclusion of the independent auditor’s assurance report on
Continuing Connected Transactions:

nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;

for transactions involving the provision of goods or
services by the Group, nothing has come to the
Auditor’s attention that causes them to believe that the
disclosed continuing connected transactions were not,
in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

nothing has come to the Auditor’s attention that causes
them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out in the above
list of continuing connected transactions, nothing has
come to the Auditor’s attention that causes them to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Year and up to the date of
this annual report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (Chairman)

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek

Ms. Liang Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Biao

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Siu Hung Foster
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia
Mr. Tian Tao

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed "Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 24 to 34 of this annual report.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
Company (the "Articles”), at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation.

Accordingly, three Directors will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution of
their duty in their offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has
been in force for the Year. The Company has arranged appropriate
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance coverage for its Directors
and officers.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
on 11 December 2019 with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing on the Listing Date, which can be terminated
by either party giving not less than three months’ notice in writing
to the other party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company on 11 December 2019
for an initial term of one year commencing on the Listing Date,
which can be terminated by either party giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other party. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors’ letter of appointment has
been renewed with a term of three years, expiring on 13 January
2024.

The term of service of a Director is subject to the provisions on
retirement by rotation of Directors as set out in the Articles.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors has or is proposed to have
a service contract or appointment letter with the Company or any
of the subsidiaries other than contracts or letters expiring or
determinable by the employer within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to Shareholders’s approval at general
meetings. Other remuneration are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibility and performance and
the results of the Group as well as the recommendations of the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”).
Further details of Director’s remuneration and the five highest-paid
individuals are set out in Note 8 and Note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 182 to 183 of this annual report.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 December
2020, if any are set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had entered into any contract of significance
with the Controlling Shareholders or their respective close
associates, or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the Controlling
Shareholders or their respective close associates, during the Year.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Shining Icon, Sense One and Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (“Mr. Chow"),
who are the Controlling Shareholders (each a “Covenantor” and
collectively, the “Covenantors”) entered into the deed of non-
competition in favour of our Company (for ourselves and as trustee
for each of our subsidiaries) (the “Deed of Non-Competition”).
Details of the Deed of Non-Competition was set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have been
complied with by the Controlling Shareholders up to the date of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company or an entity associated with him
or her has or had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at any time during the Year.
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COMPETING INTEREST

During the Year, and up to the date of this annual report, none of
the Directors, or the Controlling Shareholders or substantial
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company
or their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had engaged in or had any interest in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group and which requires disclosure pursuant
to Rule 11.04 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” below, at no time during the Year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares granted to
any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company, or the Company’s subsidiary or holding company or a
subsidiary of the Company’s holding company a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or
granted any convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights or exercise any conversion or subscription rights under any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares capital,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the
Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules
were as follows:

EERESTHRAERKRAD - HE
RO REEIRNERZR AR

R2020F 128318 ARAREENTES
THABRARRSEEER LB (TER
BHELEEKEOIEXVER) Z R - BRI
MREEERES@ $ETT§M%&HH1%1I%
BEXVIEFE 7R HRTAEME AR
REEZ T (BEREE %&Hﬂiﬂl%fﬁuﬁﬁﬁ
BRI E VE SR BB M & g0k
B O BIEBEES KB EGIZE 35214
ARSI RZIE AT I B R A RE RS SR B
() IRIEGEM E TR A E 546 2567 16 E
%x%bﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ’;$ &) REE R PTHY
ERSORABIAT ¢

Approximate
Number of percentage of
Shares held shareholding (%)
Name of Directors Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (Note 5)
HEREE B 7L (%)
EspnE B REEME (Btat1) (et 5)
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (Note 2) Interest in a controlled 87,750,000 Shares (L) 48.75%
corporation
B (Mat2) REHEE S 87,750,000 B A% 19 (L) 48.75%
Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek Interest in a controlled 13,500,000 Shares (L) 7.50%
("Mr. Lau”) (Note 3) corporation
ZIRmEad ((BIRERE]) EHEE#ER 13,500,000 A& A% 17 (L) 7.50%
(KtaE3)
Ms. Cai Xiaoshan (“Ms. Cai") Interest in a controlled 33,750,000 Shares (L) 18.75%
(Note 4) corporation
Szt ([8z+t]) Rt EE R 33,750,000 A& A& 1% (L) 18.75%
(Htet4)
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Notes:
1. The letter “"L" denotes a long position in the Shares.

2. Shining Icon and Sense One are wholly-owned by Mr. Chow.
Therefore, Mr. Chow is deemed to be interested in the Shares held
by Shining Icon and Sense One pursuant to SFO.

3. Master Connection is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau. Therefore, Mr. Lau is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Master Connection
pursuant to SFO.

4. Focus Wonder is wholly-owned by Ms. Cai. Therefore, Ms. Cai is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Focus Wonder
pursuant to SFO.

5. The calculation is based on the total number of 180,000,000 Shares
inissue as at the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Director nor the chief executives of the Company has any interests
and short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard of
dealings by the Directors as referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the following persons (not being Directors 722020512 8318 » L N AL (A IEAR R
or chief executives of the Company) had, or were deemed to have, TIEEHHEETHAE) RA QBN &
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of  fHEAARD B SR AEERIEFS &
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and ~ ER & & B S XVEFSE 2 23D 58 2 31 E A A
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part 7N 7] R B 3T PR i R M i 2 SO A Sk B S0
XV of the SFO or which were required to be recorded in the register ~ AZNA AR 15 5 5 R BR S &0 5 336 161F
of interests required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 B 7 iz S MAMEZARE -

of the SFO:

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Shares held shareholding

Name of Shareholders Capacity/nature of interest (Note 1) (%) (Note 2)
HEREE B 7Lt (%)

EspnE B REEME (Btat1) (Btat2)
Shining Icon Beneficial Owner 69,660,000 Shares (L) 38.70%
Shining Icon EnAA 69,660,000 A% A9 (L) 38.70%
Focus Wonder Beneficial Owner 33,750,000 Shares (L) 18.75%
Focus Wonder EnEA A 33,750,000 AR (7 (L) 18.75%
Sense One Beneficial Owner 18,090,000 Shares (L) 10.05%
Sense One EnEAA 18,090,000 A& A& 1 (L) 10.05%
Master Connection Beneficial Owner 13,500,000 Shares (L) 7.50%
Master Connection BEnEA A 13,500,000 A7 (L) 7.50%

Notes:

(1) Theletter "L" denotes a long position in our Shares.

(2)  The calculation is based on the total number of 180,000,000 Shares

inissue as at the date of this report.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company whose
interests are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures” above, had any interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme has been conditionally adopted on 11
December 2019. No options had been granted, agreed to be
granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option
Scheme during the Year and up to the date of this report.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out as
follows:

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined in below) as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group and to provide the Eligible Participants
an opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the
view to achieving the following objectives:

()  motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group;

(i) attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going business
relationship with the Eligible Participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group;
and/or

(iif)

for such purposes as the Board may approve from time to
time.
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Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any of the Eligible Participants, as defined below,
options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance with
paragraph headed “Subscription price of shares” below for such
number of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme.

The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any option
shall be determined by the Board (or as the case may be, the
independent non-executive Directors) from time to time on the
basis of his contribution or potential contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

Eligible participants (the “Eligible Participants”) shall include any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors) of the Group and any suppliers, customers, consultants,
agents, advisers and related entities who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group.

Maximum number of shares

18,000,000, that is, the maximum number of Shares issuable upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company as
from 11 December 2019 (excluding, for this purpose, Shares
issuable upon exercise of options which have been granted but
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the Shares in
issue as at the Listing Date which is 180,000,000 Shares.

Maximum number of Shares comprised in options to
any one individual

1% of the Shares in issue as of the date of grant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant.
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Period within which the securities must be taken up
under an option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21 days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made.

Minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised

There is no such requirement imposed by the Share Option
Scheme, provided that the Directors, may impose such requirement
upon grant of the option on which the option is deemed to be
granted and accepted.

Amount payable on application or acceptance of the
options

The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company
on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

Subscription price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option;
and

(i) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant of the
option. For the purpose of calculating the subscription price,
where the Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange
for less than five business days, the issue price of the Shares
on the Stock Exchange shall be used as the closing price for
any business day fall within the period before listing.
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Remaining Life of the Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the Listing Date.

INTERESTS OF COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Innovax Capital Limited (“Innovax”), the compliance
adviser of the Company, save for the compliance adviser agreement
entered into between the Company and Innovax dated 20 June
2019, neither Innovax nor any of its close associates (as defined in
the GEM Listing Rules), the directors or employees had any interest
in the share capital of the Company or any member of the Group
(including options or rights to subscribe for such securities, if any)
which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Rule
6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules as up to the date of this annual
report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
percentage of public float under the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by KPMG, the independent Auditor.

The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that
a resolution for their re-appointment as independent auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting for the re-appointment of KPMG as the independent

auditor of the Company.

There was no changes in the Company’s auditor during the past
three years.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, the change in
Director’s information is set out below:

Since October 2020, Mr. Lee has been licensed to carry on regulated
activities for Gateway Capital (Hong Kong) Limited.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group had no significant event from the end of the Year to the
date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To

Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate
governance in management and internal procedures to promote
and ensure accountability. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on principles and code provisions of the
corporate governance code as set out in Appendix 15 (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) to the GEM Listing Rules. During
the Year, the Company’s corporate governance practices have been
complied with and it will continue to comply with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules.

THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises eight members, consisting of five
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (Chairman)

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek

Ms. Liang Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Biao

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Lee Siu Hung Foster
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia
Mr. Tian Tao

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 24 to 34 of this annual report. Save as
disclosed, there is no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the Board.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, Mr. Chow
Eric Tse To acted as the Chairman and Ms. Liang Wei acted as the
Chief Executive Officer. The Chairman performs the management of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer performs the day-to-day
management of the Group’s businesses. Clear division of their
respective roles and responsibilities is in place and set out in writing
to ensure a balance of power and authority.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board will meet regularly and schedule to meet at least four
times every year at approximately quarterly intervals in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code. Apart from regular Board
meetings, the Chairman will also hold meeting annually with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors.

At least 14 days’ notice of a Board meeting will be normally given to
all Directors who are given an opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. The Board's procedures comply with the
Articles as well as the relevant rules and regulations.

Board minutes of each Board meeting and minutes of the meetings
of the committees shall be prepared in sufficient details for the
matters considered and resolved. Draft and final versions of minutes
shall be sent to all Directors for their comment and records
respectively, within a reasonable time after the meetings were held.

Minutes of the meetings of the Board and Board committees shall
be duly kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Corporate Governance Report
EEERRSE

EFRERTHRER

RAFEREEARFREY - BFELE
EEEXFERRBELLBETRER - 7
BEEFENEEMITRARABEARE
EBHMAEEE - BEINREZTAZA
&R ETWASEL A FERE N LER 2
Fiy o

EFERRBEEXEATAIEHAHSE
& YFSIBFELAROREH  BIH
BFEAH-—R BRERRTNEFES
I TR EFELBREMEELS
BN N ERBY JFRTESRITE

FHEFZER RELTEBESFED
THREEA - AEARE T HEERN
CREEN EFEgREFERERM
Rl LA K AR BRI B R 3R B

REFECR/EFEORNRLERERE
SR ER LB EINE BN ERNF
R EAFAER - @BLBEIERNR
RRERBESZAERR —RAERHENA
TRBEZXERES VRHEEFRER
R RERIERLE A -

EEEeaNESSR BN SRR
BHARRMARWE ([2ARE]) ZHIR
7 WAMERESZELSEBANR - £I1E
faEREHEEER -

2020 FFH KAV AIEBREEERAR 59



Corporate Governance Report
EEERRE

The attendance of each Director at the of Board meetings and AFE  SEEHEESFSEELIREKX
general meetings during the Year is set out in the table below: SHBEREHNTE

Attendance/ Attendance at general meeting/
Name of Directors Number of meeting Number of meeting

EEnA HESBERH FRRE HERRAERE KERH

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To 4/4 1/1
AfEEE

Ms. Cai Xiaoshan 4/4 1/1
SpEi

Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek 4/4 1/1
ZIRmE et

Ms. Liang Wei 4/4 1/
R+

Mr. Liu Biao 4/4 1/1
ZIREAE

Independent non-executive

Directors

BYFHTES

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster 4/4 1/
IR EAE

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia 4/4 1/1
BEM AL

Mr. Tian Tao 4/4 1/1
RS AE
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has met the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of
whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and
considers each of them to be independent.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of one
year commencing from the Listing Date. Each of independent non-
executive Directors’ service contract has been renewed for a term
of three years with effective date until 13 January 2024.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is the primary decision making body of the Company
and is responsible for overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performance and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs. The Board makes decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning. The executive Directors oversee the daily
operations of the Group, while our independent non-executive
Directors bring independent judgment to the decision making
process of the Board, taking into account the advice of the senior
management of the Group.

The Group's senior management is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business, carrying out the business
decisions of the Group is responsible for overseeing the general
operation, business development, finance, marketing, and
operations as well as other essential management functions of the
Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the "Nomination Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. Each of these committees are established
with defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of
the Board committees are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 11 December
2019 with written terms of reference in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors members, namely Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster,
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia and Mr. Tian Tao. Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster,
is the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing, in draft form,
the annual report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly
reports and providing advice and comments to the Board. In this
regard, members of the audit committee will liaise with the Board,
the senior management, the reporting accountants and auditor.
The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or usual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matter that have been
raised by the accounting staff, compliance officer or auditor.
Members of the Audit Committee are also responsible for reviewing
our Company’s financial reporting process and internal control
system.
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During the Year, five Audit Committee meetings were held and
among other things, reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual
results and the Group's accounting policies and practices, the GEM
Listing Rules and statutory compliance, annual audit plan, risk
management and internal control systems and financial reporting
matters. The attendance record of each committee member at the
meetings is set out below:

Name of committee members
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(HhaRE) BHEE PHERFEFEEIN
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Attendance/Number of Meeting

ZEERENRE HERE BITEBRH
Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster (Chairperson) 5/5
TIREBEA (F/E)

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia 5/5
BEM

Mr. Tian Tao 5/5
REkE

The Audit Committee had, together with the management,
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the Year. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the
audited consolidated financial statements have complied with the
applicable accounting standards and the requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 11
December 2019 which, at present, consists of three members
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Siu Hang
Foster, Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia and Mr. Tian Tao. Ms. Tam Hon Shan
Celia, is the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. Written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.1.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code have been adopted.
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Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of the
remuneration of independent non-executive Directors.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held
and, among other things, reviewed the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management, assessed the performance of the executive Directors
and the senior management, reviewed the remuneration package
of the executive Directors and the senior management and made
recommendation to the Board on their remuneration. The
attendance record of each committee member at the meeting is
set out below:

Name of committee members

FMEEENEIRRES (HTREBE)ETE
ERATEENSREEENREHIME
B (BREREMEN RIS EH S E N
F o BRAXREIRIERENBBARE
MM A E) - URBILIFNITE
FHFHEESSELEBER -

AEEFHZEEERRT—REx I
(AR BB A AR 2BEENERE
BEEMNHFMBRERE  SHEATESK
BREEENRE  RIRTEENSH
EIRE M RN A R SR 2 # R E
EEFLHERBER - RZEENENEH
hEReEmT

Attendance/Number of Meeting

ZESNENSE HERE BITERIE
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (Chairperson) 1/1
BEMAZ L (FE)

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster 1/
IR &

Mr. Tian Tao 1/1
b=

Details of the remuneration payable to each Director of the
Company for the Year are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management by AFEIRFMERE S REIEEK S
band for the Year is set out below: FENE DT

Remuneration bands (HKD) Number of persons
FMERCET) A
Nil to 1,000,000 3

= £ 1,000,000
Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 11
December 2019. The Nomination Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Chow Eric Tse To, Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster
and Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia. Mr. Chow Eric Tse To, our Chairman
and executive Director, is the chairperson of the Nomination
Committee. Written terms of reference in compliance with code
provision A.5 of the Corporate Governance Code have been
adopted.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
succession planning for the Directors.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination Committee
evaluates skills, knowledge and experience required by the Board,
and identifies if there are any special requirements for the vacancy.
The Nomination Committee identifies appropriate candidates and
convenes Nomination Committee meeting to discuss and vote in
respect of the nominated Directors, and recommends candidates
for Directors to the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers candidates with individual
skills, experience and professional knowledge that can best assist
and facilitate the effectiveness of the Board. The Nomination
Committee takes the policy on Board diversity of the Company into
consideration when it considers the balance of composition of the
Board as a whole.
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During the Year, one Nomination Committee meeting was held
and, among other things, reviewed the size and composition of the
Board, assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and made recommendation on the re-election
of retiring Directors. The attendance record of each committee
member at the meeting is set out below:

Name of committee members

REZEBERAFELGERT-REE I
(BB RIEETE ABMAK - fFh
BUFFRTETNE LM ANAERRE
EEFHERER - ZBEBXKELRS
A RCEREL S AT

Attendance/Number of Meeting

ZEERERS HERE BITEBRE
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To (Chairperson) 1/1
BFEEE(FE)

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster 1/1
IR S &

Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia 1/1
NS e

Board Diversity Policy EEESUEE

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board AR RIERMNEFTE L TbEE ([EEE

Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the
Board that are relevant to the Company’s business growth.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, selection of Board candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry
experience. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and experiences,
including business management, strategic development, media
and advertising, sales management and administration experiences.
The Company is also committed to adopting similar approach to
promote diversity of the management (including but not limited to
the senior management) of the Company to enhance the
effectiveness of corporate governance. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for ensuring the diversity of the Board and reviews
the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure the
effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, which
include (a) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
board; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management; (c)
to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and directors; and (e) to review the
issuer’'s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report. The Board would
review the Company's corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the
Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code and
disclosure in its Corporate Governance Report.

During the Year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company'’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Securities Dealing Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the Year, the Company organized training sessions on
directors’ duties and responsibilities conducted online by the legal
advisers for all Directors. The training sessions covered a wide range
of relevant topics including directors’ duties and responsibilities,
corporate governance and interpretation of laws and regulations
relating to Connected Transactions and inside information. In
addition, relevant reading materials including interpretation of laws
and regulations were provided to the Directors for their reference
and studying.
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According to the training records maintained by the Company, the
continuous professional development programmes received by
each of the Directors during the Year is summarised as follows:

BEARRFENFINZE  SEENA
FERNEXOFEZXEEET S
T

Type of trainings

Name of Directors =Y EIER
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To BFEkE Aand B
A B
Ms. Cai Xiaoshan s+ AandB
AN B
Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek BIREE 4 Aand B
AN B
Ms. Liang Wei R+ AandB
AXB
Mr. Liu Biao Tt Aand B
ANB
Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster IR A& Aand B
A MB
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia EEMA L AandB
A B
Mr. Tian Tao HELE Aand B
AN B
A:  attending training sessions, including but not limited to, A HRFEHFIIRE  BEETEAFTE -
seminars, briefings, conferences, forums and workshops HHe g%  wERIES

B:  reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the
economy, general business, corporate governance and
directors’ duties and responsibilities

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on terms which are the same as the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding
them of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed
securities during the blackout periods before the publication of
announcements of financial results. Having been made a specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standard of dealings and code of
conduct regarding securities transaction during the Year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditor’s Responsibility and Remuneration

The Company appointed KPMG as the Auditor for the Year. A
statement issued by KPMG about their reporting responsibilities for
the financial statements is included in the independent auditor’s
report on pages 122 to 130.

Details of the fees paid or payable in respect of the audit and non-
audit services provided by KPMG for the Year are set out in the
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table below: ERFE
Fees charged
Services rendered Fri2 LAY AR 7S Fr B & A
(RMB)
(AR
Audit services EET AR
— Financial statements audit for the Year — RFE B RREZ 1,500,000 7T
Non-audit services JEEET AR T%
— Interim financial report review — P EI SRR 500,000 JT
— Agreed upon procedures on — NEPIEH 2 B ERT
the internal control 150,000 7T
Total BET 2,150,000 7T
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the Company's
risk management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The risk management and internal control measures
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

To safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the Group, the
Company has maintained an internal control system covering
corporate governance, risk management, quality control and
financial reporting. To ensure continuous compliance of all
applicable laws and regulations, the Group has taken and will take
the following measures:

A.  The Board will review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control on an annual basis to ensure
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and will
ensure that on-going improvements will be made to the
internal control system;

B.  The Audit Committee has been established to review the
internal control system and procedures for compliance with
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules;

C.  The Group has an internal audit function and appointed a
controller overseeing corporate internal control and internal
audit. The controller has formulated the internal audit plan
and the Articles of Internal Audit;

D. Inresponse to the internal control deficiencies of the new
business model in 2019, the Group has adopted the following
measures to strengthen internal control:

The Group has facilitated the sales management and
internal control process by introducing a set of approval
forms. The Group has established a procedure of
contract review, which consists of the reviews from
business operation, finance, legal and compliance, to
ensure all material business terms and conditions are
reflected in the contract.
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To strengthen the familiarity and understanding of the
employees on internal control, the Group has provided
training for its employees in core business units.

The Group has established the contract follow-up and
archiving process to ensure that proper accounting
treatments are in alignment with business, and that the
contracts are signed and archived on a timely basis.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the agreed upon
procedures report issued by KPMG and considered that the above
measures are adequate and effective.

Based on the above, the Board considered the Group's risk
management and internal control system as adequate and effective
for the Year.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

is aware of its obligations under the SFO and the GEM Listing
Rules and is required, as soon as reasonably practicable after
any inside information has come to its knowledge, to disclose
the information to the public;

decides and implements monitoring procedures regarding
dissemination of inside information; and

communicates with relevant persons about corporate
information disclosure practices with respective training.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

On 13 November 2020, Sir Seaman Kwok Siu Man KR has resigned
as the Company Secretary. In compliance with the requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules, the Company had appointed Ms. Tung
Wing Yee Winnie. Ms. Tung Wing Yee Winnie is a senior corporate
secretarial manager of Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited.
Ms. Tung has extensive experience in the corporate secretarial field,
audit and assurance, financial management and corporate finance,
gained from her working experience with an international
accounting firm and a number of listed companies in Hong Kong.
During the Year, Ms. Tung undertook no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training. Her biography is set out on page 34
of this annual report in the section of “Biographical Information of
Directors And Senior Management”.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary on corporate governance and board practices and
matters. Each of Ms. Liang Wei, an executive Director, and Ms. Yi
Yang, the finance controller of the Group, have been designated as
the primary contact persons at the Company which would work
and communicate with Ms. Tung on the Company’s corporate
governance and company secretarial matters.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings (the
“EGM”) by the Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, the Directors may, whenever
they think fit, convene an EGM shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders’ holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Directors
or the Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring an EGM to
be called by the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward Proposals at a General Meeting

A Shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the principal place of business in Hong Kong
of the Company at 31/F,, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong,
specifying the shareholding information of the Shareholder, his/her
contact details and the proposal he/she intends to put forward at
general meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and
its supporting documents.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business in 31/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong
Kong.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with Shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. At the forthcoming
annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as
appropriate) will be available to meet Shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company currently does not have a dividend policy or any pre-
determined dividend distribution ratio and may declare dividends
by way of cash or by other means that the Directors consider
appropriate. The Directors shall decide and recommend the
amount of dividends (or decide not to recommend any dividend)
based on the earnings, cash flows, financial condition, capital
requirements, future plans of the Group and any other conditions
that the Directors deem relevant at such time. The foregoing,
including the dividend distribution record, should not be viewed as
a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be
declared or paid by the Company in the future. There is no
guarantee or representation or indication that the Directors must or
will recommend and that the Group must or will pay dividends or
declare and pay dividends at all.

The declaration, payment and amount of any future dividends are
subject to the discretion of the Board depending on the earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and the provisions governing
the declaration and distribution as contained in the Articles of
Association, applicable laws and other relevant factors.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not made any changes to its Articles of
Association during the Year. The memorandum of association and
Articles of Association is available on the respective websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

74 Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2020 Annual Report

ERRBERREEBR

ARARE  ERREREBE R ERE
ERRMINFIRBEEUAEERBERAR
RENEHEREE - ARABNHERE
BRRFERE LEREBRRBEFAE
REMBRRAE - EF (HMFNRE (H
EM))SHFEERRAFAENE R
REEERENER -

% S BUR

ARREIR R SR - NEEATEE
EKBR - BAEAREHEETRREED
H T AT KSR - EFRBEAMN R
TRE - WHRR - B2FFR - AEEDH
AKEFEREZTERRS/AENEMEM
B REREBRESBE(FRETZ
A IKMERIAR) o EXFriiE (RS
DIKACER) TR REEARR BEA
REEIRFR BB FH R E AR - ]
BEREXEAIRTESTVAATESE
& ARAEBELBESIHERMES - X
BRATEE IR SR EABLE

AREARENEIR » X RSHEHZR
REFENWIBRE  BUAREMOE
A~ BAESAROR SR & B SRIA R AR E 12 4
Al ERZRFBEEERTIRE DK
fERSCA R B A AERE A & -

BRXH
ARRBRAFREIL ESEBBERAAE

HEAES - HEER KR ESERA
AR D B A2 ) Ko B 22 P v & -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Icon Culture Global Company Limited (the “Company’, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is an integrated multimedia
advertising and marketing solution service provider based in
Guangzhou, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and offers
advertising and marketing solutions covering (i) traditional offline
media including both Out-of-home and indoor advertising
platforms; (ii) online media; and (iii) public relations, marketing
campaigns and other services to its customers comprising domestic
and international brand owners, state-owned entities in the PRC,
advertising agencies and government authorities.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the "ESG
Report’) summarises the environmental, social and governance
("ESG") initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and
demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

The ESG Governance Structure

The board of directors (the “Board”) has overall responsibility for
the Group's ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management. The Group has established a reporting
team consisting of management and external consultant. The
reporting team is responsible for collecting relevant information on
the Group’s ESG aspects for preparing the ESG Report. The
reporting team reports to the Board and assists in identifying and
evaluating the Group's ESG risks and the effectiveness of internal
control mechanisms. The reporting team also examines and
evaluates the performance of different ESG aspects such as
environment, health and safety, labour standards and product
responsibilities. The Board sets up a general direction for the
Group's ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness in the control of
ESG risks and internal control mechanisms.
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Scope of Reporting

The scope of this Report mainly includes the operation of
Guangzhou Icon Culture Media Investment Company Limited
("lcon Media”) in the PRC. Icon Media is the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiary with an office in Guangzhou. The business activities
include the traditional offline media advertising services, the online
media advertising services and the public relations, marketing
campaigns and other services segment. The Group will extend the
scope of disclosures when and where applicable. The key
performance indicators ("KPIs") are shown in this Report and are
supplemented by explanatory notes to establish benchmarks.

Reporting Framework

This ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all
applicable provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Reporting Guide”)
contained in Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing Rules of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

For the Group's corporate governance practices, please refer to p.58
to p.74 for the section “Corporate Governance Report” contained in
the Group’s 2020 Annual Report.

Reporting Period

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and

measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2020 (the “Year”).
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related to its

business and ESG issues. In order to understand and address
stakeholders’ concerns, the Group maintains close communications
with its key stakeholders, including but not limited to shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers and subcontractors, government
and regulatory authorities, and community and public.

In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Group
considers stakeholders' expectations by utilising various
engagement methods and communication channels as shown

below:

Stakeholder
B0 E

Key Communication Channels

FTEBRERE
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Expectations

e

Shareholders

IRER

Customers

'F

Employees

Announcements and circulars
Financial reports
Shareholders” meetings
Company website
YNNG

B HmE

BRERE

NGIEER

Customer hotline
Telephone and face-to-face
meetings

PR
BmlkEm

Correspondences and suggestion
box
Annual performance appraisal
Training, seminars and briefing
sessions
AALERM

FREMEZ

23l g RGNS

Satisfactory financial results
Corporate sustainability
Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

TAMBER I G
PEAFHEER

BT RBERNOER

Product and service responsibility
Customer information protection
Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

EmMRGEE
BEPERRE

BT HEBAR AR

Health and safety

Equal opportunities
Remuneration and benefits
Career development
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BEHE
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (Continued) BnESHE(E)

Stakeholder Key Communication Channels Expectations

BHE FTEBBERE B

Suppliers and . Business correspondences Fair competition
subcontractors . Procurement contracts and letters of - Cooperation with mutual benefits

undertaking
. Performance appraisals
HEBRSEH - EBER
RS 4 N oK
BRERZ

Government and . Compliance inspections
regulatory . Conferences and seminars
authorities

BREREEHSE - ARrE
gRMEE
Community and public . Press releases and news

Company website
Community activities

HERDR - FEBEMNE
NCIEERE
HEEE

The Group endeavours to actively listen to and collaborate with its
stakeholders to ensure that their opinions can be voiced out
through proper communication channels. In the long run, the
stakeholders’ contribution will aid the Group in improving
potentially overlooked ESG performances and sustain the success
of the Group's business in the challenging market.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Stakeholder engagement and communications are crucial in
understanding the expectations and priorities of the Group's
stakeholders. Apart from regular communication channels, the
Group has also conducted an ESG survey to collect opinions from
employees, management and external stakeholders, so that the
Group can better assess the materiality of various ESG issues. Based
on the assessed significant ESG issues, a data collection
questionnaire was prepared to collect information from relevant
departments and business units of the Group. The following matrix
is a summary of the Group’s material ESG issues.

The Group’s Materiality Assessment Matrix
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During the Year, the Group confirmed that it has established RAREE @ AEBBRACHERE  Hak
appropriate and effective management policies and internal control ~ B A EE RV ABENAXNEIBHE KK

systems for ESG issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents
are in compliance with the requirements of the ESG Reporting
Guide.

EBEEIE R

C WHERAREABTTEIR
B e REAREESINRE -

2020 FFH KAV AIEBREEERAR 79



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRSE

CONTACT US

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG
report or its performances in sustainable development by email
info@iconspace.com.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A1. Emissions

80

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development in its operation. The Group recognises its
responsibilities towards the potential environmental
impacts associated with its business operations and
integrates environmental consideration into its decision-
making processes.

The Group closely follows the latest national and
regional environmental protection laws and regulations,
thereby focusing on strengthening environmental
protection measures to comply with related local laws
and regulations and fully implement environmental
policies. The Group complies with applicable laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the
Environmental Protection Law of the People's Republic
of China, the Law of the People's Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution,
the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the
People's Republic of China, and the Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste. During the
Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, that have a significant impact on the
Group.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1. Emissions (Continued)

Due to the Group’s office-based business nature, the
Group does not cause a significant impact on the
environment. The Group nevertheless continuously
improves existing policies and incorporates new policies
with the intention of mitigating potential direct and
indirect negative environmental impacts arising from its
business operations.

Air Emissions

The Group's emissions are mainly derived from petrol
and diesel consumed by transportation. Due to the
Group's business nature, the Group does not generate a
significant amount of exhaust gas emissions directly
during its operations. Nevertheless, the Group has
established policies relating to the reduction of air
emissions include:

encourage employees to take public transport
during the business trip;

encourage employees to reduce unnecessary
overseas business trip, thus reducing indirect
carbon emissions

maintain vehicles on a monthly basis so as to
effectively reduce fuel consumption, thereby
reducing carbon emissions and exhaust air
emissions;

switch off the engine whenever the vehicle is
idling;

purchase regular petrol for vehicles, and conduct
annual inspections to ensure vehicles are meeting
relevant emission standards; and

actively adopt measures to reduce emissions and
the relevant measures will be described in the
section headed “GHG Emissions” under this aspect.
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A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1l.

82

A. RIE(E)

Emissions (Continued) A1, BERYD (5)

Air Emissions (Continued) EERBERR (&)

Summary of exhaust gases emissions performance: BERBEMEFIME -

Types of exhaust gas Unit 2020 2019
BERER B 2020 F 2019
Nitrogen Oxides (NO,) kg 1.60 203
RE(LP (NO) T

Sulphur Oxides (SO,) kg 0.04 0.07
WAL (S0) T

Particulate Matter (PM) kg 0.12 0.15
FERLY) (PM) T

GHG Emissions mERBHEN

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are
direct emissions from the combustion of petrol
consumption (Scope 1), indirect emissions from
purchased electricity (Scope 2) and other indirect
emissions from paper waste disposal at landfills (Scope
3).

The Group actively adopts various measures to reduce
GHG emissions, including:

actively adopt vehicular emission reduction
measures which are described in the section
headed "Air Emissions” under this aspect;

actively adopt measures for energy conservation
which are described in the section headed “Energy
Consumption” under aspect A2; and

actively adopt measures for waste reduction

which are described in the section headed "Waste
Management” under this aspect.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)
A1. Emissions (Continued)
GHG Emissions (Continued)

During the Year, the Group emitted approximately 34.63
tCOe GHG, a decrease of approximately 24.60% over
the financial year ended 31 December 2019. The
decrease is mainly caused by fewer business travels and
the adoption of work-from-home as the social
distancing measures to control the spread of the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19").

Summary of GHG emissions performances:
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BRI g RERHRE

. BEmn (&)

BERE PR (&)

RAFE - AEE BRI 3463
M-S tREERERE &
HZE2019F 12 A3 HIEFEAF
FE R 49 24.60% ° 3ZR A Th
EHREBERRLS REBE
R D1E B 3 BB B 18 e DA
1l 7 b 4% ([ B ¢ |) #9158
HEATE -

BEREHMRIRME

Indicator’ Unit 2020 2019
BE B 2020 fF 20195
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) 2 tCO,e 6.55 13.59
HEEAZEREHW(HE)? WL iRE &
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) tCO.e 27.36 3061
EE R =R (8E2) W — RS &
Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) tCO,e 0.72 1.73
HAb A BEp ($6[E 3) WE S LAREE
Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) tCO,e 3463 4593
BAERBHMES (BE1 - 2%3) WL iRE &
Total GHG emissions intensity? tCO.e/million 0.13 0.31

RERBHREERE’

revenue (RMB)

W — &b bk

2B/ ABks

(AR®)
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1l.
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Emissions (Continued)
GHG Emissions (Continued)

Note:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World
Resources Institute and the World Business Council for
Sustainable Development, the latest released emission
factors of China’s regional power grid basis, “How to
prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange, the latest released emission factors of China’s
regional power grid basis, and the “Global Warming
Potential Values” from the IPCC Fifth Assessment Report,

4 (AR5)

2. Since the central air conditioning is provided by the
property management company, therefore such

emission data was not available for collection.

3 During the Year, the Group’s revenue recorded
approximately RMB268.6 million (2019: approximately
RMB150.1 million. The data is also used for calculating

other intensity data.

Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2020 Annual Report

A.

RIE ()

A1, BRI (&)

BERE PR (&)

B RE -

BERBEREETZ -4
1t REELY  WRE(81E
BTERM) RE R T R
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ?‘%lﬁi@%ﬁ
W%M/ ABREET

E..#Eﬁii&ifff )
E’?ﬁ?‘%m‘:}:‘ B [ 13 B5 A9 A
EFBEREF -~ B TS
FICIAIEERIR - g RE
SRERE — Midk— : IRIBEAE
BRI ZERIES]) - &I
E R B R i B R
WA F X 20145 IPCCE IR

PR E AR B [ 2 BRBR (L
BRE(E] -
HRPREFHBYMEEER
ARRM - At EEAREE
PR -
RAEE - AR E /U 5%

BHARE 2686 @ ET(2019
F:HAREISOIBET) °
ZEETARFEEMEE
Bk o



A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1.

Emissions (Continued)
Discharges into Water and Land

Due to the Group’s business nature, discharges into
water and land are insignificant. Since the sewage
discharged by the Group will be disposed through the
municipal sewage pipe network to the regional water
purification plant, its water consumption amount is
considered as the amount of sewage discharged. As the
sewage of the entire office building was collected by
the property management company in a centralised
manner, specific data could not be obtained.

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the waste management principles
and strives to properly manage and dispose all wastes
produced in its business activities. The Group’s waste
management practice has complied with related
environmental protection laws and regulations.

Hazardous Waste Management

As the Group mainly focuses on providing integrated
multimedia advertising and marketing solution services,
the Group does not directly produce hazardous wastes
during its operation. No material amount of hazardous
waste was generated by the Group during the Year.
Despite the Group did not generate hazardous waste
during the Year, it has established guidelines to govern
the management and disposal of hazardous wastes. In
case there is any hazardous waste produced, the Group
must engage a qualified chemical waste collector to
handle such waste and comply with the relevant
environmental rules and regulations.

A.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B HAREARE

R®E5 (&)

A1, BB (&)

7k § £ 3t B9 B BR

HRASEREBFEE - [K
REMWHFRALFEKX - AR
7N 5= B BERR )5 7K 3 B T IR
EIKE RN ERBUKEFL
BR - EFEIKE AR BI5 KX
B - IREEBRAKRENFTK
HYEEEARETRE &
EXRSRHERRE -

BRERYEE

AEEETERERMEERA
HMNZEERRBREAXBE
HELNMBEEREY - A5H
M EEZE W) B IR 1B (8 <7 AR RA IR
iﬁb/j&_@&/iiﬁl

BEEERYEE

EEE’\$'$II%§JIEA%TN*

ZHBEEREHEBRATR
Hlﬁ% REBREEBREFRIW
BREEREELEBEEEY - AE
ERNAFEIRELERERSE
BEEY - BEAKSEREAFE
EHETEREREREEERE
S| - TI\J]IHEEHTEEEJE
BEMEL  AKBUTEZRES
%{Tﬂftgﬁf%wqﬁﬁﬁféﬁgx
LREEY  RETHBIRES
/\J&%WJ

2020 FFH KAV AIEBREEERAR 85



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRSE

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A1l.

86

Emissions (Continued)
Waste Management (Continued)
Non-hazardous Waste Management

Non-hazardous waste generated by an office-based
operation was mainly office paper. During the Year, the
Group did not produce a disproportional amount of
waste. The Group continues to place great effort in
educating its employees on the importance of reducing
waste production and has adopted the following
environmentally-friendly initiatives to enhance its
performance. Green measures include but not limited
to the following:

use duplex printing, recycle papers and use
electronic means to reduce paper usage;

print or photocopy only the pages needed;

reuse office stationaries, such as envelopes and
folders;

encourage employees to recycle equipment such
as computers and communication devices;

utilise electronic means for office daily
communication;

implement waste classification according to
relevant local waste management regulations; and

reuse materials for public relations execution
activities.

During the Year, the Group discharged approximately
149.69 kg of non-hazardous wastes, a decrease of
approximately 58.53% over the financial year ended 31
December 2019. The decrease is mainly caused by the
adoption of work-from-home as the social distancing
measures to control the spread of the COVID-19.
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BRI g RERHRE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RF (&)
A1. Emissions (Continued) Al. BERYD ()
Waste Management (Continued) BEYEE(E)
Non-hazardous Waste Management (Continued) I ERE e T (4 )
Summary of non-hazardous wastes discharge BEBRZEVHENERASE -
performance:
Non-hazardous waste type Unit 2020 2019
BEBRRYER B 2020 F 2019
Paper kg 149.69 361.00
AR /NN
Total non-hazardous wastes intensity kg/million 0.56 241
revenue (RMB)
BREEZEVEERE DT/ BEWE
(AR®)
A2. Use of Resources A2. ERERA

As an enterprise with social responsibility, the Group
upholds and promotes the principle of effective use of
resources. Through the 4Rs principles, namely, “reduce,
reuse, recycle and replace”’, the Group promotes green
office, and minimise the environmental impacts of the
Group. The Group encourages its employees to use
their best endeavours to reduce the use of resources,
with a view to contributing to the community and the
environment. The Group will keep monitoring the
potential environmental impacts in its business
operations.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

88

Energy Consumption

The major energy consumption of the Group is
electricity consumption in the operations and petrol

consumption via transportation.

Related policies and initiatives on energy conservation
have been developed to show the Group's concern for
energy efficiency. All employees must implement the
adopted policies and measures in resource utilisation.

The relevant specific measures are as follows:

consider energy-efficient products when
procuring and replacing equipment, such as
replacing incandescent lighting with LED lighting;

turn off electrical appliances or switch them to
standby mode when they are not in use, thus

reducing the amount of electricity used,

turn off all unnecessary lighting, air conditioning
and electrical appliances before leaving the office;

regulate the use of air conditioners strictly to

prevent waste of electricity; and

enhance the maintenance and overhaul of
equipment, maintain the best condition of all
electronic equipment for effective use of

electricity.
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BRI g RERHRE

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued) A. RIE(#)
A2. Use of Resources (Continued) A2. EREH (&)

Energy Consumption (Continued)

During the Year, the Group consumed approximately
74.32 MWh of energy, a decrease of approximately
29.31% over the financial year ended 31 December
2019. The decrease is mainly caused by fewer business
travels and the adoption of work-from-home as the
social distancing measures to control the spread of the
COVID-19 In the following year, the Group will make
continuous efforts to maintain or reduce the total
energy consumption.

Summary of energy consumption performance:

RETFUHAE ()

RAFE - AEBEEFEL7432
KEEEE N - REE2019F 12
A3B LM B FER 2 H
2931% c WA TDEERREE
T R BRI K 3% A AE A 1
¥ I K A R BB E
Mo RE  RNEBEGEES N
IR D BEETREFE ©

RERBERREME

Types of energy Unit 2020 2019
BERE R B 2020 20195
Direct energy MWh 23.85 48.67
Petrol
BEER JK FLBF
;i
Indirect energy MWh 5047 56.47
Electricity
GEEGEYA JKFLBF
Total energy consumption MWh 74.32 105.14
EERHREE JK LB
Total energy consumption intensity MWh/million 0.28 0.70
revenue (RMB)
BERHRRAETE JKEE
[Ep-—L 6
(AR®)
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A2. Use of Resources (Continued)

20

Water Consumption

Water usage was only confined to water used by
employees at the office. Water consumption data was
not available since water usage was covered in the
tenancy fee.

The Group nevertheless encourages all employees to
develop the habit of conscious water conservation. The
Group has been enhancing its water conservation
promotion. Environmental messages are posted in the
pantry and washrooms to remind employees to save
water. The employees’ water conservation awareness
has been increased with the above water-saving
measures.

Due to the Group's business nature, the Group did not
encounter any problem in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose.

Use of Packaging Material

Due to the Group's business nature, the Group does not
produce any final products nor does it have any
industrial facilities. Therefore, the Group does not use a
significant amount of packaging materials during its
daily operations.
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A.

ENVIRONMENTAL (Continued)

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group focuses on its business impacts brought to
the environmental and natural resources and pursues
the best practice for environmental protection. In
addition to complying with related environmental laws
and regulations and international standards for proper
natural environment preservation, the Group has
integrated the concept of environmental protection
and natural resource conservation into its internal
management and daily operations in order to achieve
the aim of environmental sustainability.

Working Environment

The Group strives to provide employees with a
comfortable working environment to enhance working
efficiency. The Group maintains office discipline and
environmental hygiene, and ensure personal office area
and common areas are neat and tidy. The Group’s staff
monitor the conditions of the workplace from time to
time, set up emergency plans in advance for risk
mitigation, adopt preventive and control measures for
problem and risk identification, and deal with the
identified problems and potential risks in time to
maintain a sound working environment.
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SOCIAL

B1. Employment

92

Human resources serve as the foundation for the
continuous development of the Group. The Group's
success highly depends on its ability to attract, cultivate
and retain employees. The Group adheres to a people-
oriented approach, standardise labour employment
management to respect and protect the legitimate
interests of every employee. At the same time, the
Group strives to ensuring the health and safety of its
employees, protecting their labour rights and
stimulating their enthusiasm and creativity.

The Group actively complies with labour laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Labour
Law of the People's Republic of China, the Labour
Contract Law of the People's Republic of China, and the
Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances. During
the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance of laws and regulations in respect to
employment practices that would have a significant
impact on the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 43
employees, all of which were located in the PRC. The
following graphs show the age, gender and
employment category of employees of the Group:
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By Gender By Employment Category

g lE-lba) RERERS S

A

BHREEE  EBE
7t B Senior Management Management
Female Male JHREET

Office Staff

By Age Group
RERARNE S

30583 T _ 31-405%

Age 30 or below — Age 31-40
L 41-505%

Age 41-50
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B. SOCIAL (Continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)

924

Employment Practices
Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group formulated a series of related personnel
management policy to guide employees to actively
integrate personal pursuits into the long-term
development of the Group.

To ensure employees and applicants are treated and
evaluated fairly, the Group has established a robust,
transparent and fair recruitment process and
comprehensively examine whether the candidate is
consistent with the employment standards. The Group’s
employees are recruited based solely on their
experience and expertise and without regard to their
age, ethnicity, origin, gender identity, marital status,
sexual orientation and religion.

The Group offers promotion and development
opportunities for outperforming employees through an
open and fair assessment system so as to explore their
potential capability, develop their career and meet the
Group’s needs for sustainable development. The Group
has formulated “Performance Appraisal Management
Regulations”, including reasonable key performance
indicators and selection criteria for outstanding
employees. The promotion of employees will be
evaluated according to the appraisal results.

Besides, the Group does not tolerate the dismissal of
employees under any unreasonable basis. Any
termination of the employment contract would be
based on reasonable, lawful grounds and internal
policies. The Group strictly prohibits any kind of unfair or
unreasonable dismissals.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)

Employment Practices (Continued)
Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair and reasonable
remuneration system that provides compensation to
employees. The Group offers competitive remuneration
and benefits, which are determined by referencing
market benchmarks in order to attract high-calibre
candidates. The employees’ standard remuneration
package includes basic salary, performance bonus,
overtime payment, position subsidy and related
subsidies and other bonuses. Employees’ remuneration
is determined based on their responsibilities,
qualifications, performance, experience and seniority.
The Group also offers other remuneration packages,
including but not limited to medical insurance and
granted leaves such as maternity leave, marriage leave,
compassionate leave, and bereavement leave. The
remuneration policy and package of the employees are
periodically reviewed.

Compensation of key executives of the Group is
reviewed by the Company’s remuneration committee
which is based on the Group’s performance and the
executives’ respective contributions to the Group. The
remuneration of the Board and members of senior
management is determined based on the duties,
responsibilities, experience, skills and time commitment,
as well as the performance of the Group.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)

926

Employment Practices (Continued)
Remuneration and Benefits (Continued)

The Group signs and executes labour contracts with all
employees in the PRC in accordance with the Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China. The
Group pays “five social insurance and one housing fund”
for its employees in the PRC in compliance with the
laws and regulations, namely endowment insurance,
medical insurance, unemployment insurance, work
injury insurance, maternity insurance, and housing
provident fund to ensure employees are covered by
social insurance. These benefits are paid according to
relevant local regulations, which are paid monthly.

The Group also provides different benefits such as
birthday present, tea time, and employee discounts on
different restaurants to boost the sense of belonging of
the employees.

Diversity, Equal Opportunities and Anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group
recognises the value of a diverse and skilled workforce
and are committed to creating and maintaining an
inclusive and collaborative workplace culture in which
all can thrive. The Group is dedicated to providing equal
opportunity in all aspects of employment and
maintaining an inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture that is free from discrimination, physical or
verbal harassment against any individual on the basis of
race, religion, colour, gender, physical or mental
disability, age, place of origin, marital status, and sexual
orientation.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B1. Employment (Continued)

B2.

Employment Practices (Continued)
Working Hours and Rest Periods

The Group has formulated policies in determining the
working hours and rest periods for employees following
local employment laws. The Group has implemented a
five-day work scheme. The Group provides employees
with statutory holidays and welfare holidays. In addition,
employees are entitled to additional annual leave based
on the cumulative years of employment in the Group.

The Group encourages employees to maintain a work-
life balance and avoid unnecessary overtime. The Group
provides overtime allowance and compensatory rest
arrangements for employees.

Health and Safety

The Group highly recognises the importance of health
and safety of its employees. The Group commits to
providing employees with a healthy, safe and
comfortable working environment and strive to
eliminate potential health and safety hazards at the
workplace. The Group strictly enforces relevant laws and
regulations including but not limited to the Labour Law
of the People's Republic of China, the Law of the
People's Republic of China on the Prevention and
Treatment of Occupational Diseases, and the Fire
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China. During
the Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with health and safety-related laws and
regulations that would have a significant impact on the
Group.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2. Health and Safety (Continued)

28

The Group places a high priority on providing
employees with a safe and healthy working
environment. Although health and safety measures that
are applicable to an office-based business operation are
limited, the Group is nevertheless committed to
safeguarding the wellbeing of all employees. The Group
formulated the “Office Management Regulation” to
reduce employee-related safety risks and enhance
employees’ occupational health awareness.

During the Year, there were no work-related fatalities
and lost days due to work injury reported in the Group.

Workplace Health and Safety

The Group reminds employees to use office equipment
safely and has implemented a smoke-free office.
Relevant policies are included in the "Office
Management Regulations” formulated by the Group.

Due to employees’ prolonged use of computer, the
Group has provided employees with desks of suitable
height and task chairs of adjustable height and
encourages them to pay attention to their usual sitting
posture, take breaks and do stretching exercises
regularly, thus reducing occupational strain. Employees
are also reminded to take safety precautions and use
suitable tools when lifting heavy goods or reaching
items at height.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B2. Health and Safety (Continued)

Workplace Health and Safety (Continued)

On potential environmental hazards, special working
arrangements during typhoon and rainstorms has been
specified by the Group to avoid any confusion that
might lead to safety issues. The Group has also taken
precautions over fire hazards, where fire extinguishers
are strategically placed and fire exits are free from
obstruction. At the same time, the Group has also
placed first aid boxes around the premises for both daily
and emergency uses.

In response to the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
the Group has implemented a series of precautionary
measures in accordance with guidelines from the
governments at all levels to ensure the health and safety
of its employees. In addition to requiring employees to
check and record their temperatures and visit a doctor
immediately whenever feeling unwell, the Group also
reminded its employees of the importance of
maintaining good personal hygiene by washing hands
frequently with soap. The Group has also provided
surgical masks to employees whenever necessary.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B3. Development and Training

Training Management

Training and continuous development are
indispensable to the Group’s staff to keep abreast of the
ever-changing trend in the industry. Therefore, the
Group takes a proactive approach to provide employees
with opportunities to advance their careers. The Group
provides relevant on-the-job training for each employee
to facilitate their business abilities. Through various
training, employees are able to strengthen related
business professional knowledge and management
skills. The Group also encourages its employees to apply
for internal and external training courses to refresh prior
knowledge. During the Year, the Group provided
training to more than 67.44% of its employees, with an
average training time of approximately 0.79 hours.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B3. Development and Training (Continued)

Training Management (Continued)

For new employees, the human resources department
will provide orientation training in relation to the
Group's policies and guidelines. The head and members
of the department will be responsible for providing on-
job training to new employees. The Group's
“Management System Compilation”, which includes the
Group’s systems in relation to administration, human
resource, finance and legal, is issued to the employees.

On the subject of employees’ career prospects, if
vacancies or new positions are available, the Group shall
consider internal promotion or transfer, thus
encouraging upward mobility of employees.

As mentioned in the section headed "Recruitment,
Promotion and Dismissal” under aspect B1, the Group
regularly assesses employees’ performance. The Group
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the training
courses conducted by the management to improve the
quality of its training system. For those employees
whose performance has yet to reach a satisfactory level,
the Group shall provide directed training tailored to
strengthen their skills and knowledge.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B3. Development and Training (Continued)

102

Training Management (Continued)

In order to implement the Group’s development
strategy, promote corporate culture, create a good
corporate atmosphere, and cultivate and shape the
sense of honour and mission of all employees, the
Group has held the selection of outstanding employees
during the Year. The selected outstanding employees
were awarded with preferential promotion
opportunities and bonuses.

Taking into account its existing training channels, the
Group also launched an e-Learning platform to provide
employees with a convenient and effective learning
environment. The e-Learning platform allows
employees to choose training courses based on their
needs and interests. In response to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has provided anti-
epidemic training to its employees.

Regarding the development and training of the Group's
Director, the Directors keep abreast of regulatory
developments and changes in order to effectively
perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Every newly appointed member has received a
formal, comprehensive and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of
Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B3.

B4.

Development and Training (Continued)
Training Management (Continued)

The Group organises training sessions on directors’
duties and responsibilities conducted by the legal
advisers for the Directors. The training sessions cover a
wide range of relevant topics including directors’ duties
and responsibilities, corporate governance and
regulatory updates. Besides, relevant reading materials
including compliance manual and legal and regulatory
updates shall be provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying.

Labour Standards
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly prohibits the recruitment of child
labour and forced labour. The Group has established a
well-defined recruitment process which examines the
background of candidates and a formal reporting
procedure for handling any exception. During the
recruitment process, the age of the applicant is verified
against the identity documents of the applicant. In
addition, the Group conducts regular reviews and
inspections to prevent any child labour or forced labour
in operation. For the use of false information or in
violation of the provisions of the Group, the probation
period shall be immediately terminated or the labour
contract shall be terminated.

The Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations related to the prevention of child labour or
forced labour including but not limited to the Labour
Law of the People's Republic of China and the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour of the People's
Republic of China. During the Year, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with child and
forced labour-related laws and regulations that would
have a significant impact on the Group.
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BS.

B6.

104

Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values the importance of potential
environmental and social risks management in its
supply chain. For the effective monitoring of
procurement procedures and cost control, increasing
management transparency in procurement, the Group
has formulated a stringent and standardised “Supplier
Management System” and “Supplier Selection
Procedure”. During the procurement process, the
procurement manager is responsible for selecting and
reviewing suppliers. Apart from considering the offered
price, the Group also takes into account the supplier’s
background, qualification, management model, the
provision of quality service, financial health status,
experience in similar services, fulfilment of contract,
social and environmental compliance and follow-up
services. The Group periodically evaluates and monitors
the performance of its suppliers to ensure their
compliance with laws and regulation relating to
environmental and social policies, service standards,
contract conditions and quality provisions. During the
Year, the Group had a total of 144 suppliers which were
all located in the PRC.

Product Responsibility

The Group actively safeguards the quality of its products
with the internal control process. The Group also
maintains on-going communication with customers to
ensure understanding and satisfaction of their demands
and expectations, and to improve its service quality by
learning their satisfactory rates. The Group earnestly
complies with laws and regulations such as the Law of
the People's Republic of China on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests, the Advertising Law of
the People’s Republic of China, and the Patent Law of
the People's Republic of China. During the Year, the
Group was not aware of any material non-compliance
with any laws and regulations in relation to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services and methods of redress that
would have a significant impact on the Group.

Icon Culture Global Company Limited 2020 Annual Report

He (&)

B5.

B6.

HEERERE

rEBeEERBRERERL
REMEEBREENES
Mo BARERREREF &K
iEH - IR BEENER
E - AREBD I EREMIZE
LB E R G E ) KR
EEEERE)  EXRBBRARE
FoRBCEBREEEREDS
HER - BREERREIN K&
BrrEZREftEENER &
®meEREEX IRHEE R
% BN - REELUBRF B
KB BITAEH L8 RIRER
B R BHERTE - AEE T H
TEREREMERRIR
NHEREETHEHRERLS
B - IRBIZZE - 50K R
BERTMERRER - BA
FE - -AEEHEB14aBHEE
7 2EIAI R E o

EmEE

AEEEBANEERREFES
REEERLE - AEE A
BEPRFBHERR  AHERT
M ERENREREPE
THEEMERENHEREER
SERKEE -  AEEEEE
SCREARKMBEEEE R
REE) (PEARANMEE
TR (PEARKMEZR
EYEERER - WAFE - K
SEY THNEENEERERE
FAEmERGMEERRZ 2
BE BEMLEEENANLME
T R RDAR MOR IR T ¥
REBEKRERTZENER



SOCIAL (Continued)

B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

Protection of Intellectual Property (“IP")

Prevention against potential copyright violation is of
utmost priority in the advertising industry. Before
inserting a copyrighted image on the Group's product,
the Group ensures that consent from the relevant
copyright holder has been obtained.

Additionally, the Group respects IP rights and therefore
is committed to purchasing genuine copyrighted
products such as computer software and firewalls.
Fundamental guidelines are also provided to the
employees to ensure they do not infringe upon any IP
rights such as trademark and copyrights. Disciplinary or
legal actions may be taken against the employee should
he/she be found to be in breach of such rights.

Customer Services

Feedbacks from customers are welcomed as it is the key
to enhancing the Group’s services. Procedures for
handling feedbacks have been set up. Should the Group
receive any complaints, the Group will strive to act
immediately to resolve the issue with effective
corrective actions. Due to the Group's business nature,
the disclosure on the number of products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and health reasons
was not applicable. During the Year, the Group's
number of products and service related complaints
received was zero.
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B6. Product Responsibility (Continued)

106

Customer Privacy Protection

The Group recognises that the protection of customers’
privacy is the key to its success. Therefore, protecting
and maintaining customers’ privacy always remain in
the first priority of the Group. The “Office Management
Regulations”, “Visitor Management Regulations”,
"Confidentiality Agreements” and “Brand Management
Regulations” have been implemented to establish the
principles of data protection governing the collection,
usage, and disclosure of personal data given to the
Group from individuals.

The Group seeks to protect customers’ information and
accounts by adopting data security measures such as:

update the operating system and anti-virus
software on a prompt and regular basis, thus fixing
security vulnerabilities;

backup employees’ computers and servers
regularly, hence avoiding possible data loss
(including the data in relation to IP rights and
consumer data and privacy) caused by hardware
or software failures;

promptly notify the management, and conduct
quarantine and inspection based on relevant
protocols when computers or servers showing
signs of anomaly, so as to minimise potential risks
of data leakage;

conduct meeting with clients and visitors in the
conference room instead of in the working area of
the office to avoid potential leak of client data or
other private information;
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B6. Product Responsibility (Continued) B6. EmEE (&)

Customer Privacy Protection (Continued)

disclosure of the Group’s information relating to
strategies, researches, technologies, financial,
clients and other confidential information, to
unrelated third parties or employees, is prohibited;

prohibit employees to read other employees’
working information, computer and personal
items without consent;

permission must be granted before entry to the
financial office or server room with confidential
information;

keep information and data related to intellectual
property rights and consumer data and privacy
confidential after employees’ resignation; and

configure proper networking and server
permissions to avoid employees from accessing
customers’ information and private information
that is unrelated to work.

Advertising and Labelling

The Group emphasises the importance of appropriate
advertising and compliance with requirements relating
to media advertisements. The Group has formulated
relevant policies and procedures to ensure that the
information on advertisement and labels do not contain
false, misleading or incomplete information and false
statements in order to protect the interest of consumers
from being deteriorated by improper advertisement
and label descriptions. The CSM Media Research, the
largest market research institution in the PRC, will
monitor the advertisements placed by the Group to
confirm the effectiveness of the advertisements.
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B7. Anti-corruption
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The Group is committed to building a clean and healthy
corporate system, vigorously combating corruption and
other improper business practices. The Group has
strictly complied with laws and regulations such as the
Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, and
the Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China. The Group specifically stipulates that
employees must discharge their duties with loyalty and
integrity, and shall not abuse their positions to seek any
improper interests. During the Year, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with related laws
and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering that would have a significant impact on the
Group.

The Group has zero toleration for any bribery, corruption
and all other behaviours violating work ethics. The
Groups formulated “Professional Ethics and Anti-Fraud
Code of Conduct”. Employees are expected to fulfil their
duties with integrity and to cease engaging in any
activities that involve bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.
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SOCIAL (Continued)

B7. Anti-corruption (Continued)

In addition, the Group has established a complete
whistle-blowing mechanism. The Group encourages all
employees to report on any possible improprieties,
misconducts, malpractices or irregularities. If an
employee discovers any possible improprieties,
misconducts, malpractices or irregularities within the
Group, he/she can report it to the administrative
department or his/her senior. If the reply to the
complaint is not satisfactory or if the employee does not
want the complaint to be handled by the administrative
department nor his/her senior, he/she can report it
directly to the general manager. Reports and complaints
received will be handled in a prompt and fair manner.
The Group intends to protect the whistle-blower from
common concerns such as confidentiality and potential
retaliation. Therefore, the employee reporting in good
faith under the whistle-blowing mechanism can be
assured of the protection against unfair dismissal or
victimisation, even if the reports are subsequently
proved to be unsubstantiated.

If any corruption, bribery, blackmail, fraud and money
laundering incidents are discovered, Group will take
necessary legal actions to protect the rights and
interests of the Company and its stakeholders. The
number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt
practices brought against the Group or its employees
during the Year was zero.
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B8. Community Investment
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In pursuit of business development, the Group spares
no effort in contributing to the community. The Group
is committed to contributing the society through
continuous participation in community services in order
to fulfil the Group's corporate social responsibility and
will consider establishing relevant community
investment policies in the near future to better manage
the Group's contribution to the community. The Group
hopes to foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
thus encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community.

During the Year, the Group provided a free advertising
platform for broadcasting the public welfare video to
pay tribute to health care workers on the frontline and
deliver a positive message to the public during the
COVID-19 pandemic. The Group also launched the book
donation activity to encourage people to donate old
books in good condition to children in the mountainous
areas.
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI g RERHRE

BERBERZMARQA(RE -+
ERERBREEIDARES

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE  EEH - —REE
REARBERER it B89
Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : By
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
Exhaust Gas and GHG emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
—MHRIXEE BRRER NORE RN - Kkt B
WHPS AENEEEEMNESL
£
@ BE: Kk
b)) BTHBETAFTERZENMN
BRI o
KPIAT.1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions — Air Emissions, GHG

FABAEIEIR ALY
KPIA1.2
BASRARSNIRIR AL 2
KPIA1.3
FABARIIERA13
KPI A1.4

FAS SRR A1 4

emissions data.

BER IR R ABRR PR EE -

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.

mERBHMEE (EEE) &
R e

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
EARZTEEYEE (ANEFTHE
NEE °

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FEARZEEYEE (ANEFTE
NEE -

Emissions, Discharges into Water and
Land, Waste Management

PR — BESRBER  IREREBTEN -
MK R - BERYE IR

Emissions — GHG Emissions
BER) — IR E RN

Not applicable — Explained
TER — D E

Emissions — Waste Management

B — EEYMEE

2020 FFH RALXAIEBREEERAE | 111



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R - e kERRE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

E‘E}%H?“A"Eﬁﬁﬁffﬁ’&7<<
ERERBREESIDRERS (B

#

RIR -

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration

TEHE  BFEH - —REE

RERERIER i 5589

KPIA1.5 Description of reduction initiativesand ~ Emissions — Air Emissions and GHG

AR EIRIZ A1
KPI A1.6

FASRAE NIEIR A16

results achieved.

U R B E AR i R FTAS R R ©
Description of how hazardous and
non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HiGEIREEERETEEMN L -
RIEEEEIEELFTEKRE -

Emissions

BERRY) — BER P MR E R BB

Emissions — Waste Management

BEn) — BEEMEE

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 : EREA

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

Use of Resources

— R E ERERER(BEER KEREM ZHREA
FRIFEL) BCR
KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources — Energy

FABAEIEIR A2
KPI A2.2
FAB AR IR IR A22
KPI A2.3

FASAE R IR A3

112

consumption by type in total and

intensity.
RERE SN EE R SEEER
/wu,x%%i&%ﬁg

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BFEKRKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.
i B2 R 8 PR RO 8 b S PR A5
e
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Use of Resources — Water Consumption
BIRER —FKE

Use of Resources — Energy
Consumption



THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI g RERHRE

BERBERZMARQA(RE - &
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE  EFEH - —REE

RERERIER it 5589

KPIA2.4 Description of whether there is any issue  Use of Resources — Water Consumption

FASAE N IEIR A24

KPI A2.5

BB AE R IR A25

in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.

SR EGE R KR ER] A E A HRE
VA KR T+ FR KB an B9 ¥8 Bt S TS
e

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.
HXmAABEMHNEE

(AW &) RBEEBMEE -

BRER — FKE

Not applicable — Explained

NER — EfFE

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBHA3: BERXAER

General Disclosure

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.

The Environment and Natural Resources

— R BIEEITAHRRERRAEREK BRREERAER
BERTENEK -
KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of ~ The Environment and Natural Resources

PR AR SN FE TR A3

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R R TGRENHIRIE MR R ERAY
BEAXEREERNEEREETERN
178 -

— Working Environment

RERRXARER — TIERE
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RIE - HERERBRSE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

ERBERZMARQA(RE -+
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
TEHE  BFEH - —REE
RERERIER i 5589
Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1 : E(E
General Disclosure Information on: Employment
(@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity,
antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.
—MRIXEE BB RE BREEEA (=
TR S - REA - PEKS
ZAt ~ RIEAR DA R H A8 &
BRI
@ BE: K
b)) BTHETABERFZENMN
BRI -
KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment  Employment

type, age group and geographical region.

ZIER - BERE
SnHmEEEE -

RS 4B IR IE BT

FhAR MR BE
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPlIs
FTEHE  EBH - —REE
RERENIEE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERWRE

E‘E}%Hﬁ“A"EFEEﬁE’D\T< RIE - 4t

Description

g

ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

B8 B

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EmEB2: @EHEZE

General Disclosure

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(b)

impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working
environment and protecting
employees from occupational

compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant

Health and Safety

hazards.
— R FERfZ2TEREMRERE RREZSE
BRBEMEEN
@ BER: K
b) BTHETAEBEAZENM
B AR MR B o
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and Safety

FAS AR ANIR 1R B2
KPIB2.2

FASAE IR IR B2.2
KPIB2.3

RASR 4B IRIZEB2.3

fatalities.

ETTHEABRLE -

Lost days due to work injury.
EIBEATIERS -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

R PR ER AN B R R R B 2 16 06
ANAERIRTT REE R TE

RFEEZ S

Health and Safety

RREEYZ 2

Health and Safety — Workplace Health
and Safety

BEEZE: — TIRSMERELZS
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RIE - HERERBRSE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description
FTEHGR  BE - —RKE
RERERIER it

ERBERZMARQA(RE -+
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

a0 L

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[ETEB3 : & KIE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees'’

knowledge and skills for discharging
duties at work. Description of training

Development and Training — Training
Management

activities.
— AR EE FRARAEEBTILERENHZ BRKE)—HIERE
NARBE VR o fatsEdEE o
KPI'B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training — Training

by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).

BASR 48 N FE1E B3.1

Management

RUEMMERERN(NSREERE

TR RIE — BRI

RAREEE)ESNXIMEEADL ©

KPIB3.2

category.
RIS E IR 3.2
AN TR -

The average training hours completed
per employee by gender and employee

Development and Training — Training
Management

BT REERERE Y BREE T BRIKE —HIIEE
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs
TEHE  EFEH - —REE
RBRERES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Description

g

BRI g RERHRE

BERBERZMARQA(RE - &
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

B8 B

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[ETEB4 : & T XA

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labour.

Labour Standards — Prevention of Child
and Forced Labour

—MRIKEE BRAD) IEZE T8 45 TH) SITAAN—HIrET Ra%ET
@ BR: K
b) BTFHETABEAZEMIE
R RIROINEFR o
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards — Prevention of Child

FAS AR ANIR 1R B4
KPI B4.2

FASAE SN FE1R B4.2

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

it st RIS B Ol E e AR 2 E T
NogH&5 T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.
AR E R BN ERBEER
PTERER ) 2088 -

and Forced Labour

TR — By IEET Roahl s T

Labour Standards — Prevention of Child
and Forced Labour
BTRA—HIFET RigHI8 T
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERBRSE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEXOFTHE FHEEAXSHERATCEE - &
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED EREARRERSI)RNERS| (&)
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
FTEHE - BH —REE
REARERIER faut E8BH

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS5 : ftfEHEERE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and Supply Chain Management
social risks of the supply chain.

— R EIEMEENREN SREBBEK o HEEEE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management
region

RA S4B U IR BS.T i@ B D MHEREE - HrEgEE IR

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure Information on: Product Responsibility

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

—RR IR EAREESNMRENERRAELY ERET
2 EE BEEKESEUREK
FER
@ BX: K

b) TFTHETABEAZENIEH
SEERRIBY
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRI g RERHRE

ERBMESXZMAERARCER &
ERERBREESDRERS (B

and KPIs Description Section/Declaration

TEEHR  BE - —REE

RERERIER i 5589

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Product Responsibility — Customer

FASR 48 X FE1% B6.1

KPI B6.2

PR AR K515 B6.2

KPI B6.3

RS 4B IRIZEB6.3
KPI B6.4

FABAE IR R BoA
KPI B6.5

BAS 48 SN FE 1R B6.5

shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.
EENCERERBEPEAL 2 ERZ
RIBEMARKA A DL
Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.
BRI E m KRG HV IR BB A K
JEXI70% -
Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

MG ENRENBEETBNT
ﬁo
Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
S B E 8RN E mEIWAR 7 o
Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
OB B & SRR IS RALB R
AR ARBNIT REEERTTA o

Services

EmET —EFPRH

Product Responsibility — Customer
Services

Emal — 2P R%E

Product Responsibility — Protection of IP

EmEE — REAZERE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Services, Advertising and Labelling
EmBEE —TFPRE  BEMER
Product Responsibility — Customer
Privacy Protection

EmET —EFPRLRE
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RIE - HERERBRSE

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description
TEEHR  BE - —REE
RERERIER it

ERBERZMARQA(RE -+
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

B8 88

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : RES

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

General Disclosure

Anti-corruption

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant

impact on the issuer relating to

bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
—MRIKEE BRAILHRE PR BEFERERE RES
Hy
@ BR: K
b)) BTHEHITABERAFZENMN
B AR MR DI E R -
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption

regarding corrupt practices brought

against the issuer or its employees during
the reporting period and the outcomes

of the cases.
BB IEIE B7.1

RERPABBTAIERERELY RES

EEENESHRRTOEE M

+
# °

KPIB7.2

Description of preventive measures and

Anti-corruption

whistle-blowing procedures, how they

are implemented and monitored.
BB E IR B7.2
MITRERTE -

ft Py R BRIz - ANERE RES
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(Continued)

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures

and KPIs Description
TEEHR  BE - —REE
RERERIER it

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERWRE

BERBERZMARQA(RE - &
ERERBEEIDANBRERS (F)

Section/Declaration

a1

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[BEB8 : HtE®RE

General Disclosure
understand the needs of the

Policies on community engagement to

Community Investment

communities where the issuer operates

and to ensure its activities take into

consideration the communities’ interests.

— AR R

BRMHELRRT REBFELE HERE

FEMERERFASSE BLRA

FmAVHBUR ©
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B R E RS

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Icon Culture Global Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Icon
Culture Global Company Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 131 to 219, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code") together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

BARENER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional  RIEFH M EEHE - BEEAFSEAR
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the {IBHAHEGANERRTIREENE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These  IH o H IR T BB S B EHRER LI
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the ZBXEREIPZESIE M T2 HZ
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our ZEIEEFEXRER, o

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Revenue recognition

LON

Refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 161 and 162.
BRI E I BEREMTIRE 161 162 EETHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BREEIE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BRANES NAEEZEE

The principal activities of the Group are rendering
traditional offline media advertising, online media
advertising, PR marketing campaigns and other services.
EEECTIEXBRRHAERG THERES  #L
KRS - N LB REMRT -

Revenue from different advertising service projects have
different contract terms and revenue recognition
criteria. In addition, as the Group handles individual
transactions manually, there is an increased risk of that
error may be made in the recognition of revenue.
TRES RFIEB B A BB TRIE S LR U
AFERIZE o I R EEBEUAFEIBERIZZ
5 WA MRS ] B2 R IR B ER B0 AR 3B AN -

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

HFIEHE WA R B RFEERANSIA -

understanding and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls over recognition of revenue;

T R AN ST (B R U A FE TR AE B Y BB 52 1O B0 4% Il
Wi EAETA R

inspecting the Group's contracts with customers on
a sample basis and discussing with the management
on the nature of each major type of services to
evaluate the Group's revenue recognition policies
with reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
MEREEEBEEFNGL  WHERERN
REFTEHRURBOUEE - A2 EBRTGHE
AR E A RS EWATERBER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHEERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
RRETEE

BARESTEEGR)

LON 46 )

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAWETOMEREZSEIE

We identified recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because (i) revenue is a key performance
measure for the Group and a key driver of the gross
margin which increases the risk that revenue may be
manipulated to meet targets and expectations; and (ii)
different contract terms require different accounting
treatments and manual analysis which increases the risk
of errors in the recognition of revenue.

BAPIR WA TR R BB R TR F1R - REAR ()W
ARBESENERESEERENEN T RES)H
= 0 U A AT BE R AL LA E B B 1R TR HA RO [
@ K TRAKGERBKR IR EERA
T - BINWATER R AR
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reconciling revenue records as set out in the
management accounts, on a sample basis, to service
contracts, service confirmation notes, monitoring
reports, and bank-in slips;

MG EIRRE E MR ERBE L
IRISHERE - BEREMmE MIRITARSEEITHER

confirming with the Group’s customers directly on
revenue records, balances of trade receivables,
summaries of service contracts signed between the
Group and its customers and the completion status
of the above service contracts as at the year end on
a sample basis;
MEEZERNEEETPWAERLE BFHE
WHIEEE EEEREAETPERINREEH
M2 R RIS L FROTHGRM

assessing existence of the Group's advertising
services projects by matching services contents as
set out in the service contracts signed with the
customers to the media resources procurement
contracts signed with the suppliers on a sample
basis; and

FEMBEE TP RITNREE QRN RBER
REHEEZINEBERRBSANETR
4 HEEEEESREEARSEE &

evaluating whether revenue was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period by assessing whether
the advertising services revenue recognition
progress was consistent with the terms and
advertisement schedule in the service contracts on a
sample basis.
RBMETHESREVARREESES LR
BEANGRRESKER -2 FEKER
ARNEE ST HIRAL



Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) AREETEE ()

g5 BWEERE

Impairment of trade receivables

Refer to note 14 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 148 to 154.
BRI E B HEN T 14 RE 148 2 154 AR EETEE °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMWOET OAEEZEE

The Key Audit Matter
BARENSEE

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of trade

statements, the Group has gross trade receivables receivables included the following:
amounting to approximately RMB155,401,000 as at 31 BT EEZERFIBERENETEZEFEREATS

December 2020. Impairment losses of RMB905,000 were I8 :

recorded as at 31 December 2020.

BAERE IS RRM 14T EE - EEEH 2020
FNANEWNESRERBUREBEBBRBNARARK
155,401,000 7T © FA20206 12 A 31 A 8213 R E & 18
AR # 905,000 7T °

Trade receivables are generally due within 180 days
from the date of revenue recognition.

B 5 RWRIE— R B AR E BT 180 H N E
H o

Management recognises a loss allowance for lifetime
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the trade receivables.
Lifetime ECLs are estimated based on a number of
factors which include aging of overdue trade
receivables, historical payment profiles and the
corresponding historical credit losses rate of the Group's
customers, current market conditions and forecast of
future economic conditions, and with reference to
expected credit loss rates of comparable companies at
the end of each reporting period. Such assessment
involves a significant degree of management
judgement and estimation.

EIRERE HRIGIAN 2 BRE S BB RRE
BRE - 2 HRBESEBRIBRESER R
BREENEZREFUANKRE  SEEEFPNBHE
NFERRBEBEEEEEE - BAITRRARNR
KOBARRTEA - WREAE LR A RN HRERR
WIESEEBRX - BN A REXEZENERE
JE 2 R Af et

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls which govern
credit control, debt collection and the estimation of
loss allowance;

FHEREEERES - EENE kBB ELET
EVRARR N ERE R AT - B EEA L

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
trade receivables aging report were classified within
the appropriate aging bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the relevant
supporting documents;

MR ER - @88 E 5 EWGIARE ®
EHREERIE R EAARERAN M ETHE - AT
HEZRWFIERRBRETNEEREDER
HERRREER

2020 FFH RALXAIEBREEERATE | 125



Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHEERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

The Key Audit Matter
FARETER

BARESTEEGR)

LON 46 )

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANETOMEEZSEIE

We identified assessing the impairment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because the
assessment of loss allowances for trade receivables is
inherently subjective and requires significant
management judgement, which increases the risk of
error or potential management bias.

B EE SRR FIEREBRN REREAF
B REGEE ZRYEGIENEEEBELRE LA
X8 YH2EEEELEXRAE - EfmEm
RSB E IR E R R A ER o

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED

challenging management’s estimation of expected
credit losses, taking into consideration the aging of
the balances, credit terms, recent settlement
patterns, historical observed default rate and the
forecast of future economic conditions; and
ZREREKR  FEH  MHAEERN - #B7F
BRENRLARREEMRATER  ERERE
HEHEEEBOME &

identifying significant or long overdue trade
receivables by inspecting the trade receivable aging
report and challenging management’s assessment
of the recoverability of these balances, taking into
consideration the aging of the balances, credit
terms, recent settlement patterns, and current
market conditions and forecast of future economic
conditions.
FiBREEHRERRFARRRS IS ERNLIK
HaEZRWIE  TEREBBHZEFRS
A RIS - B ERESRNKRER (5
EH T EAERE B AT MR R AR B R
SRR o

e M BEmR R E XA RS L

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT W& #

THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other ESAMEMEBELRERT - ALERE
information comprises all the information included in the annual  FETEHRERAM 2 FER - BETBIEELR
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our & M #HE M ERFIOZEENRE -

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not ~ FI¥4R A& B MEMER L TRE HAy
cover the other information and we do not express any form of ~ &#} » I EZFH M E R EEREM

assurance conclusion thereon.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHEERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

BRBEHRES S M B RRTAE
HEE ()

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZHEERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Kai Ming.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
melEEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(Z 2020 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

(AARBHIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi)

2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
aE ARET T AREFIT
Revenue g 3 268,612 150,099
Cost of sales FHEE R AR (163,708) (171,676)
Gross profit EF 104,904 (21,577)
Other revenue H AUz 4 1,316 1,229
Other net (loss)/income Hith (&518), WA F 58 5 (541) 143
Selling expenses HERY (2,596) (2,746)
Administrative expenses 1T (17,282) (27,991)
Profit/(loss) from operations BERR(BE) 85,801 (50,942)
Finance cost 5 E A 6(a) (118) 613)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB ADER(B5E) 6 85,683 (51,555)
Income tax Frig 7 (22,952) 9,266
Profit/(loss) for the year RATERRREGEFER
attributable to equity =, (BE)
shareholders of the Company 62,731 (42,289)
Earnings/(loss) per share (RMB) & R%EF],(B5E) (AREE)
Basic BN 10 0.35 (0.31)
Diluted #E 10 0.35 (0.31)

The notes on pages 139 to 219 form part of these financial statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note 21(f).

FI139EN9EMNMEBRZFMHERERN —HD o BNANRAERRRESF RN ENFBER

FHsE21() ©
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEREaREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 % 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR#EFIIR)

2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARETT
Profit/(loss) for theyear  fFwmfl (R 62,731 | (42,289
Other comprehensive income FRHEMEZE KR
for the year
Item that may be reclassified B[t B DR E B
subsequently to profit or loss: mIEE -
Exchange differences on translation BRETEAARE
of financial statements of entities ([ARB¥D1EREEE
not using Renminbi (‘RMB") MBI EHREN
as functional currency EHZRR 244 (194)
Other comprehensive income FRHEM P E KR
for the year 244 (194)
Total comprehensive income EARERBRREMN
for the year attributable to FREEWNEHEEE
equity shareholders of the
Company 62,975 (42,483)

The notes on pages 139 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
F139F 219 AN FEBRR TR BRI —2D -
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

E MR R

As at 31 December 2020 74 2020 12 A 31 H
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARMEFIIIR)

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 4
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Fftat ARBTRT ARBTT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R NEE 11 657 1,335
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 12 568 5,059
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIEEE 20(b) 847 10,206
Total non-current assets FARBEELLE 2,072 16,600
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E A I I8 14 180,122 81,575
Other financial assets HihemEE 2,728 -
Restricted deposits with a bank e —RERITH R R

T 15 7 7,342
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReEEY 16 14,566 28,852
Total current assets REBEEMAEE 197,423 117,769
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HAERFIR 17 75,326 120,948
Contract liabilities S4B E 18 8,636 8,781
Lease liabilities MEBaE 19 670 4,093
Current taxation BNHAFR I8 20(a) 7,438 19
Total current liabilities REEEREE 92,070 133,841
Net current assets/(liabilities) REBEE (86 FHE 105,353 (16,072)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZABEH A A RS 107,425 528

The notes on pages 139 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
F£139E 219 B B % FS

FISERE — R D ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR R

As at 31 December 2020 74 2020 4 12 A 31 H

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AANREEDITR)

2020 2019
2020 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR®T AREFTT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 19 = 809
Totalnon-currentliabilites ~ Fhn@&fes - 809_
Net assets/(liabilities) EEFE(AEFH) 107,425 (281)
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital f& 7 21 1,596 —*
Reserves ik 21 105,829 (281)
Total equity/(deficit) (W) B 107,425 (281)
* The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000. * ZRBERRESELDRARE10007T °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 L& B &7 20214 3 A 24 BHLAE R IZHELELT »
March 2021.

Liang Wei Liu Biao
2 2

Director Director
EF EF

The notes on pages 139 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
F139F 219 AN FEBRR TR BRI —2D -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(Z 2020 4 12 A 31 HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARMFIIIR)

(Accumulated

losses)/

Share Share Other Statutory Exchange retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

(RitE8B)/

ke RGEE  EtRE  iERE  EXRGE REER gt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR  ARBTR ARBTn ARMTR ARMTR AR®TR  ARET:R
Note21(a)  Note21(c)(ij Note21(c)(iv) Note21(c)ii) Note 21(c)(iii)
Miaa)  BWEa0 WE2QM  KE6 K216

Balance at R2020E18188
1 January 2020 i) -+ 48,731 (11,907) 3,537 (194) (40,448) (281)

Changesin equity for2020: 2020 FEHEH :

Profitfor the year EREH - - - - - 62,731 62,731
Other comprehensiveincome  Efi 2 E A - - - - 244 - 244
Total comprehensiveincome 2T £ - - - - 244 62,731 62,975
Issue of ordinary shares BLaR

(note 21(0)) (Hiat2na) 1,59 3,135 - - - - 44,731
Appropriations tostatutory  EEEE Tk

reserve (note 21(c)() (Wit 2100) - - - 4142 - (4,142) -
Balanceat R20205128318

31 December 2020 ftkeh 1,596 91,866 (11,907) 7,679 50 18,141 107,425
*  The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000. * ZHBEERTEELONRARE 10007T

The notes on pages 139 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
F139E 219 AN FEBRR TR BRI —2D -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEREEEHXR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (JAARHEFITR)

Retained

eamings/

Share Share QOther Statutory Exchange  (accumulated
capital premium feserve feserve feserve losses) Total

RREH/

BEx REE  AtEE  AEEE  EREGR  (ZHER) @t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
Note 21(a) Note 21(c)i) ~ Note21(c)iv) ~ Note 21(c)(ii) ~ Note 21(c)(ii)
Wioe  WEae0 HEoom  BEao6 206

Balance at R2019E1A18 20010
1January 2019 i3 16814 - 3537 - 31841 72002

Changes in equity for2019: 2019 FE#EF :

Loss for the year Engi - - - - - 12289 #2289
Other comprehensive income  Efi&z A4 & - - - - (194) - (194)
Total comprehensiveincome 2 ENE 2% - - - - (199 42289 (42483
Issue of ordinary shares YTEBR

(note 21(0)) (it 210) S i1 - - - - #71

Amounts transferied fom BT ARAHEE
share premium to share ERERANEE
capial prior to reorganization  (3£21(6) ()

(note 21(c)() 16810 (16810) - - . _ _
Arising from reorganisation R EA (36820) ) (11,907) - - - (48731)
Dividends (note 21(f) %8 (Wzt2) - - - - - (30,000) (30000)
Balance at R201912831A -

31 December 2019 i3 48731 (11907) 3597 (194) (40448) (281)
¥ The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000. * ZRBERTEEIRARE1,0007T

The notes on pages 139 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
F139F 219 AN FEBRR TR BRI —2D -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(Z 2020 4 12 A 31 HIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (A ARMFIIIR)

2020 2019
2020 & 2019 4
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Fftat ARBTRT ARBTT

Operating activities RETEH
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 4:& (FF ),/ Fri§E & 16(b) (52,474) 41,442
Income tax paid BT FTSHR 20(a) (2,919) (7,984)

Net cash (used in)/generated ReEEE) (FrA), g

from operating activities REFH (55,393) 33,458
Investing activities REEE
Investment income received 2B KA - 28
Proceeds from disposal of financial ~ HE&®BEE 7 Fr§RIA

assets - 6,775
Payments for purchase of financial ~ BBESBEE 2K

assets (2,728) (5,000)
Payments for purchase of property, BBEWZE « MENMKREZ

plant and equipment BE/N (206) (998)

Net cash (used in)/generated BRETEH (FTH), B
from investing activities HEe R (2,934) 805

The notes on pages 139 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
F139E 219 AN FEBRR TR BRI —2D -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)  (AAR¥EFIR)

2020 2019
2020 & 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Fftat ARBTRT ARBTT

Financing activities ALE R E
Gross proceeds from initial shares BRI B ESHRIEEEE

offerings 21(a)(i) 55,476 -
Payments of listing related expenses i #8821~ 3% (7,199) (3,546)
Issue of shares IR, = 48,731
Payment to then shareholders in SRR E R RRAAR

reorganization - (48,731)
Payment of dividends SRR 21(f) - (30,000)
Payments of lease liabilities MERENK 16(c) (4,232) (7,830)

Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEE TS (FTH)

_financing activities =~ REFE 44,045 | (41376)
Net decrease in cash and HeERBEESEEYRD
cash equivalents HEE (14,282) (7,113)

Cash and cash equivalentsatthe FHRERBESZHEY
beginning of the year 28,852 36,008

Effect of foreign exchange rate HNEEZSBHHTE

changes (4) (43)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESREAESEEY
at the end of the year 16(a) 14,566 28,852

The notes on pages 139 to 219 form part of these financial statements.
F139E 219 AN FEBRR TR BRI —ED -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(Z 2020 4 12 A 31 HIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

Presentation of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand except share
data, which is the functional currency of the major
subsidiaries of the Group in mainland China.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
financial assets that are stated at fair value as explained
in note 1(e).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Presentation of preparation of the financial

140

statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA to these financial
statements for the current accounting period:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.
Impacts of the adoption of the amended HKFRSs are
discussed below:

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether
a transaction represents a business combination. In
addition, the amendments introduce an optional
“concentration test” that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and
assets is an asset rather than business acquisition, when
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or
group of similar identifiable assets.

The adoption of the amendments did not have impact
on the Group's results and net assets for the current year
prepared or presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

142

Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether
certain qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19-
related rent concessions”) are lease modifications
and, instead, account for those rent concessions as if
they were not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments
and applies the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-related rent concessions granted to the
Group during the year. Consequently, rent concessions
received have been accounted for as negative variable
lease payments recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurred.

The Group leases advertising spaces and billboards and
an office expiring from 16 to 36 months. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Group received rent
concessions in the form of a discount on fixed payments
during the period of severe social distancing and travel
restriction measures introduced to contain the spread
of COVID-19. The amount of rent concessions with
value-added tax excluded was RMB2,406,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

There is no impact on the opening balance of equity at
1 January 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(g)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Otherinvestments

()

144

Other investments are recognised initially at fair value.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Motor vehicles 4 years

Office equipment and others 2-5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Leased assets

Atinception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, oy
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
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exchange for consideration. To assess whether a RE Al ABREREE-

contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset —
— this may be specified explicitly or implicitly, and
should be physically distinct or represent
substantially all of the capacity of a physically
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of the economic benefits from use of the asset
throughout the period of use; and

the Group has the right to direct the use of the
asset. The Group has this right when it has the
decision-making rights that are most relevant to
changing how and for what purpose the asset in

distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive e MHEFABEEKRE

substitution right, then the asset is not identified; BRERE  AIZEETE
Al

—  the Group has the right to obtain substantially all —  AREBEGHENEEF B

Bl BEEMERTES
BABDEENz - &

— AREREEEERAZE
EeBAKEESENRE
BEEASTANENRA
HERRRER - AEE

used.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low-value assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

146

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payment made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or
the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or losses if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Leased assets (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract ("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases.
In such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient set out in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and
recognised the change in consideration as if it were not
a lease modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the
current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents, restricted deposits with a bank,
trade and other receivables).

Financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

— trade and other receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

148 | lcon Culture Global Company Limited 2020 Annual Report

1

TEEFBE(E)

(h) EREAREERE

() REEWMIANERBX

AEERIZH XA E
MNEREE(BRRAES R
RBeEEY  FHE—HF
RITHZREEFR BH
Ko oA & WK IR ) #) T8
ERBL(FEHERER)

MR R -

BARBEAENESHE
EHAETRBEREBX

FRRIE R A)ET 2

BHERBRREREX
MR N A Er o SR8
RKUMBEHESEMAS
BAREBEANERET
AEENHRSRERAE
EEFTWEINRERE
B Z5) WIRERE -

MR FEEKX - A
RAeBMeBRERNLT

ALIA SR BEIR -

— B REMERR
8 RAIRHER R E
BRI R HIT

PUE -



1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Creditlosses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(i) Creditlosses from financial instruments

(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic

conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following
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Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic

conditions at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

150

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default
event occurs when the borrower is unlikely to pay
its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held). The Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Creditlosses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(i) Creditlosses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition:

failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if available);

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the

assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

152

(Continued)

(i) Creditlosses from financial instruments
(Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities
that are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which
the loss allowance is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the

fair value reserve (recycling).

Werite-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines
that the debtor does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows

to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in

which the recovery occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Creditlosses and impairment of assets

(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:
—  property, plant and equipment;

—  right-of-use assets; and
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statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
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Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit ("CGU")).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current assets
(Continued)

—  Recognition ofimpairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).

— Reversals ofimpairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the period in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

()

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 1(p)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1())).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant financing
component, the contract balance includes interest
accrued under the effective interest method (see note

1(p)(iii)).
Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(h)(i)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

)]

(m)

156

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in note 1(h)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Employee benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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1

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(BRBAEPTIEIN - HANRETIR)

1 FESTHBERE)

(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits(Continued)

(n)

(ii)

(iii)

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
PRC, the Group participates in a defined contribution
basic pension insurance in the social insurance
system established and managed by government
organisations. The Group makes contributions to
basic pension insurance plans based on the
applicable benchmarks and rates stipulated by the
government. Basic pension insurance contributions
are charged to profit or loss as the related services
are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and

movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current

tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that

they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant

amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

158

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account
if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investment in a
subsidiary to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group or the
Company has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group or the Company intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise
and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the provision of services and the sales of
goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax ("VAT") and is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group's revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(i) Integrated multimedia advertising services

Revenue from integrated multimedia advertising
services is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the performance period for which the services are
rendered, or recognised when the Group fulfilled
the specific performance obligation under the
finalised contract terms with customers.

(ii) Publicrelations (“PR"”), marketing campaigns
and other services

Revenue from public relations, marketing
campaigns and other services is recognised when
the Group fulfilled the specific performance
obligation under the finalised contract terms with
customers.

(iii) Interestincome

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(iv) Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate
the Group for the cost of an asset are recognised
as deferred income and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of each
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the Group or the Company initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value
was measured.

The results of foreign operations with functional
currency other than RMB are translated into RMB at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated into RMB
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity

and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

164 | lcon Culture Global Company Limited 2020 Annual Report

1

TEEFBE(E)

(r)

BAEE TS

(@

(b)

ELTIBERT - XALH
HTHREKREEAEE
BRAR:

()

(if)

(i)

A 22 i) 2 FL [R] 422 ) 2R
&8 :

HAKRBEERTE
VAN

RARBERANEEF
NANEZEEAE
B E o

EATMEMABRT - XE

g (g

2

()

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

R R -

ZER &K%liﬁm
F—SEHNKER
Q=IRSI/NEIIS W%’&
CINAGEI S INGIES
BB -

—JlaE
(= —HEER/KE
NAEIMEBEETKE
REIMNBERRIHA
BRE) -
MR EREER—F
WA ERE -
RERBRF=TEH®
MEZErEMR—&
BRAIRZFE=TERE
KNI



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Note 22(d) contains information about the assumptions and
their risk factors relating to fair value of financial assets. Other

key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical accounting

judgments in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies are described below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

2 ACCOUNTINGJUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Principal versus agent considerations —
revenue from provision of advertising
services

In determining whether the Group is acting as a
principal or as an agent in the provision of advertising
services, judgements and considerations of all relevant
facts and circumstances are required. The Group is a
principal in a transaction if the Group obtains control of
services provided before they are transferred to
customers. If control is unclear, when the Group is
primarily obligated in a transaction, and has latitude in
establishing prices and selecting publishers, or has
several but not all of these indicators, the Group records
revenues on a gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records
the net amount earned as commissions from services
provided.

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade and
other receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires
the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are
estimated based on a number of factors which include
ageing of overdue trade receivables, historical payment
profiles and the corresponding historical credit losses
rate of the Group's customers, current market conditions
and forecast of future economic conditions, and with
reference to expected credit loss rates of comparable
companies in the same industry at the end of each
reporting period. Where the estimation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and
thus the impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group keeps assessing the
expected credit loss of trade receivables during their
expected lives while assessing the expected credit loss
of other receivables during 12 months unless there has
been significant increase in credit risk since the initial
recognition.

(BRBAMIEIN - HAAREIIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

(a)

168

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are rendering
traditional offline media advertising, online media
advertising, PR, marketing campaigns and other services.
Further details regarding the Group’s principal activities
are disclosed in note 3(b).

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by major service lines is as follows:

AEBEzT2EBR/REES
RTHEERS WLERE
Tl 2HABREMR
%o BRAASEEIEXH 2 H
— HRHBR M EE 3(0) AR EE ©

KEEFPAAMWasIEEER
B D HIER

2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT
Revenue from contracts with BBV BEHREER
customers within the scope F15REERDN
of HKFRS 15 REEFEHANNE
Disaggregated by major service lines 3£ F ZARFEFE D 5]
Traditional offline media advertising {E4T4R T 58 & 25 Ak 1%
services
— acting as a principal —1EATFEETA 255,397 133,045
Online media advertising services 48 |- 182 & & IR 1%
— acting as a principal —EREFERMEA 8,786 8,707
— acting as an agent —{EARIE 3,149 986
PR, marketing campaigns and N EHEE REA
other services* PR 7% *
— acting as a principal —EREERMEA 1,280 7,361
268,612 150,099
* Revenue from PR, marketing campaigns includes * KERNEME - 2HEBWE

revenue of sales of goods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRSHFTIEIN - HUAREZIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaHEkoBEE (B
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (48)

Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by timing is disclosed in note 3(b)(i).

Disaggregation of revenue by geographical market is
disclosed in note 3(b)(iii).

The Group's customer base is diversified and includes only
three customers with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group's revenues in 2020 (2019: two). In 2020 the
aggregate amount of revenues from these customers
amounted to approximately RMB211,769,000 (2019:
RMB104,877,000).

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 22(a).

2020 FFH KAV AIEBREEERAR

Wz 2 5l (4])

>

RERFAHRWEEIZRREN
DHIAMIEE3(0)() I EE ©

W s R I T 5 B 0 B A B A
3(b) i) P FE

AEENEFERZ L B
2000 BEZRBEFHIRS
83BN & B U A #910% (2019
FRAB) o R2020F © REZ
EERFMBRABEOBARE
211,769,000 7T (2019 4F : A R ¥
104,877,000 7T) °

ZEREPELNERERER
FY IR BN MT FE 22(a) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which
are organised by business lines. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group's most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
three reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

— Traditional offline media advertising services:
operation of media advertising services on
television and other broadcasting channels,
newspapers, journals, public transports, elevators
and lifts;

— Online media advertising services: operation of
media advertising services on selected websites,
online social media groups and Apps;

— PR, marketing campaigns and other services:
assisting in launching campaigns and events to
promote brands, services and products of the
Group's customers;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and costs are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the costs incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation of assets attributable to those
segments. However, assistance provided by one
segment to another, including sharing of assets, is
not measured.

The Group’s senior executive management is
provided with segment information concerning
segment revenue and profit. Segment assets and
liabilities are not reported to the Group’s senior
executive management regularly.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e. “adjusted earnings before
finance costs, interest income, taxes and
depreciation”. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the
Group's earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such
as listing expenses, staff costs, directors’ and
auditor's remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

(BRS=BEAIEIN - HUAARKEIITR)

2 ER R E ()

THRE  EERER

shatfh o B R HE kDB D
MEBRME AREZ
BARITHEEA B T IA
TEEERZAREDH

FEIG 254 -

Wt MR T2 EZFD
ERFTEL 2 HER LK
KX HAZEFDWBEMBEE
EZHEMEEMORE
AIERE DR o AT - 3 &P
BXE: BRAREE-

AIRREE -

AEEZSMITHEREA
BREREHRARD G W &
Az DA ER e DEE
ENAGBILETF RN E
ESRITRERASER -

REFEEIREDEZ
i Fl 2 [ 8 Z ERBITDA | (B
[FAEMBRIFEER - &
WA-BHBEBETENR
1) - BFFEFHEMBRE
BER - MEWA - B8
RTEMRTN  AEEg
B0 48 R FE (R B1 o BEAE AL
ZHBEEBE wmEmHEAX- B
TITRHA - EFRIZEEMFH
B K EAth 48 Rl sk (b ¥ 1T
AR - E— AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RARME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEko#BEE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DIFHE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities i) 7HPEE - EEREE
(Continued) (%&)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with B ZE 2020F K 2019F 12 A
customers by the timing of revenue recognition, BNNRIEBFE  RERK
as well as information regarding the Group's H=EEOENKBEERFS
reportable segments as provided to the Group's AR E - A RAEBE &
most senior executive management for the SETHEBAERSEA
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of BAAEE R FREDLHNE
segment performance for each of the years ended ROAREETEIRD @E
31 December 2020 and 2019 is set out below. Ky EBRIRFTE) - 5151
T o
Traditional
offinemedia ~ Onlinemedia PR, marketing
For the year ended HZ2020612831H advertising advertising  campaigns and
31 December 2020 ILEE services services  other services Total
85 N
BTER BLEe EEHR
RERS RERS AR At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARETT ARET T
Disaggregated by timing of REAREEELE
revenue recognition
Pointin time Jilllcgasd - 3,477 1,260 4,737
Over time REERED 255,397 8,458 20 263,875
Reportable segment revenue THED Pl 255,397 11,935 1,280 268,612
Reportable segment profit THRED PEA
(adjusted EBITDA) (RENREEER -
FSHWA - BHER
REAEA) 106,400 3,483 162 110,045
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FE VBRI
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WaEkoWHE (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DIFHE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities i) 7HPEE - EEREE
(Continued) (#)
Traditional
offine media Online media PR marketing
For the year ended HE019F 128318 advertising advertising ~ campaigns and
31 December 2019 FE services services other services Total
LD N
BTEE Mg EER
BERH% BERS ikt @t
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000

AREFTL ARETT AREFTL AREFL

Disaggregated by timing of REANEEELE

revenue recognition
Point in time SR - 9,105 3,363 12468
Overtime REERBED 133,045 588 3998 137,631
Reportable segment revenue THEI DR 133,045 9,693 7361 150,099
Reportable segment (loss)/profit 735 28R (R MK
(adjusted EBITDA) HHER  FSHA
RERFEANRT) (19,180) 5672 2570 (10,939)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEkIBERE (B
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) 2 EBHRE (&)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable segment profits (i) THREFDHHEFOEIR
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Reportable segment profit/(loss) T &%7}%
wmAL (E18) 110,045 (10,938)

Depreciation ﬁ%
— Property, plant and equipment — 4% - &= K & (884) (608)
— Right-of-use assets — (FREEE (4,491) (8,688)
Finance cost M%EER (118) (613)
Other revenue H Wz 1,316 1,229
Unallocated head office and ROMENT M E

corporate expenses and A REMES

other expenses (20,185) (31,937)
Consolidated profit/(loss) LEE BT R

before taxation wmF (E518) 85,683 (51,555)

(iii) Geographic information (iii) HWEHHR

All of the Group’s revenue and assets are NEEMA Wm REEY
generated and located in the PRC. R RARAE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(c)

Revenue expected to be recognised in the
future arising from contracts in existence at
the reporting date

Contracts with customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its service contracts.
Hence the Group does not disclose information about
revenue that it will be entitled to when it satisfies the
remaining performance obligations under these
contracts that had an original expected duration of one
year or less. Excluding these contracts, the aggregated
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations under the Group's
existing contracts is RMB7,471,000 as at 31 December
2020. The Group expects to recognise these revenue
within six years when these services are rendered.

3 I

(c)

2020 FFH KAV AIEBREEERAR

(BRS=BEAIEIN - HUAARKEIITR)

Ko &S (&)

RERARRERRBARNBE
AHRESHNkE

BERMBRELZNE 155REE
RNEFEH

AEBCHERBENERSE
BB REERFE 155121
MEREREFZE - Al A&
EYEBEEEEENBEITZE
GH(RIBHER A —F LU
TETHBELHETRHEERE
SHREMER - RZEAL
Ah - 2020512 8318 - B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RARME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

4 OTHERREVENUE Hits g 22

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETRT ARETT

Interest income T2 A 160 217

Investment income RERA - 28

Government grants (i) B 488 B () 56 372

Others Hi 1,100 612

1,316 1,229
()  Government grant represent various forms of incentives () DRATHE R 46 R B4 75 DR AT 4
and subsidies granted to the Group unconditionally by BRERTAEETNRAER 2

the local government authorities in the PRC. He k& -
5 OTHERNET (LOSS)/INCOME Hit (BR) WA RHE

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

Foreign exchange (loss)/gain HNEE (B518), e (7) 150
Others HAh (534) (7)

(541) 143

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6 MBIADEF,(&HR)
Profit/(loss) before taxation is arrived at after charging: BBBDE R (EE) Th& % 5l
FBIRBER -
(a) Finance cost (a) BIEEH
2020 2019
2020 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR®ET
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERE 118 613
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (b) EIFRA(BEEEMZ)
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETR
Salaries, wages, bonuses and benefits ¥4 « T& « fE4L A2 F] 8,820 7,908
Contributions to retirement schemes 3R K512 4t 7 640 668
9,460 8,576
The Group has no other material obligations for Br Bttt 5RAN - AN B B A A
payments of pension benefits beyond the contributions BEEMRABRMNRNERE
described above. o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e RARME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

6 PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 6 BR#{

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

AR A (E518) ()

(c) Otheritems (c) HMIEHE
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT

Media costs L TN 157,173 153,797
Costs for PR, marketing campaigns A8 « & /58 R Et

and other services R 75 Ak A 1,117 4665
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment  — Y% - BE K& 884 608
— Right-of-use assets —EREEE 4,491 8,688
Recognition/(reversal) of credit MR, (B E) = ARk B S

losses allowance for
— Trade receivables — B SRR 383 81)
— Other receivables — H{th e Wk IE 880 1,500
Auditor’s remuneration % ERE BN & 2,000 1,650
Listing expenses EMRX - 17,819
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN - HAAREIIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 FEBEZRNAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) RmEBEERHIEIE
profit or loss represents:
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRT ARBTT
Current tax expense (note 20(a))  ENEAFLIERA X (M 7L 20(3))
Provision for Hong Kong Profits tax ~ F RN E S TS E
for the year - 19
Provision for PRC income tax FANRRETEHEE
for the year 13,277 -
Under-provision for PRC income BEFERBEMEH
tax in respect of prior years BETR 316 -
Deferred tax expense/(benefit) IEZEF BRI (Fl#F)
Reversal/(origination) of temporary ~ Bl /(FE4) EHFIEZ58
differences (note 20(b)) (Htat 20(0)) 9,359 (9,285)
22,952 (9,266)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(BRBAEPTIEIN - HLANRETIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

7 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense/(benefit)
and accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax

7 HREBRBEROFES(F)

(b) REBARRIFENHIER
X/ (W) mEshER, (&

rates: B)WHER
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEL DS R, (E8) 85,683 (51,555)
Notional tax on profit before taxation, /5 8 &% 1 Bl & F H) 2 &
calculated at the rates applicable TIE - RE RN A
to profits in the jurisdiction AlARE [R5 M E T R
concerned (note (i) HEHFE0) 22,610 (9,268)
Effect of non-deductible expenses  ~A] F151 5 5 B 52 £ 26 15
Effect of non-taxable income PR AR E - (13)
Under-provision in respect of prior B FEREBETE
years 316 -
Income tax expense/(benefit) FTSHiASY (fa) 22,952 (9,266)
Note: Kiet

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

The Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong is a qualifying
corporation under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate
regime, and the first HK$2 million of assessable profits
are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits
are taxed at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%).

The statutory income tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries is
25% (2019: 25%).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEMS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of BIEEE N HEMZE 383N IEA LA
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BIROIE 2 (WEESFHZER)
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EMEEMemT -
Directors) Regulation are as follows:
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZE2020F12A31BLFE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Total
I%- %8 RIK
Bz REWEAN A HEGE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARET T ARET R ARET R ARET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Chow Eric Tse To R v - 116 - - 116
Ms. Cai Xiaoshan BRE Tt - 116 - - 116
Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek P e - 76 - - 76
Mr. Liu Biao b - 839 50 892
Ms. Liang Wei 2R tT - 716 48 767
Sub-total INet - 1,863 98 6 1,967
Independent non-executive BV FHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster ThELE - 174 - - 174
Mr. Tian Tao AELE - 174 - - 174
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia BEMt - 174 - - 174
Sbtod o - 52 - - 522
Total st - 2,385 98 6 2,489
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AU ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 8 EEMe (&)
Year ended 31 December 2019 BZ2019F12A31BLEE
Salaries,

allowances Retirement

Directors' and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind bonuses contributions Total

T% - @8 Ed\
EEWE  REDEA [t HE S @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR ARETRE ARETT ARET:H

Executive directors HTES

Mr. Chow Eric Tse To BAFELE - - - - -
Ms. Cai Xiaoshan BRE Tt - - - - -
Mr. Lau Tung Hei Derek FREEE - - - - -
Mr. Liu Biao s - 583 103 3 718
Ms. Liang Wei 2T+ - 604 145 32 781
Sub-total et - 1,187 248 64 1499

Independent non-executive B FHTES
directors

Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster (note () ZEJk#B 5 4 (B5E () - - - - -
Mr. Tian Tao (note (i) mELE () - - - - -
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (note (i) M4+ (Fi5 () - - - - -

Sub-total INet - - - - _
Total st - 1,187 248 64 1499
Note: Mtat -

() Mr. Lee Siu Hang Foster, Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia and Mr. Tian () FIBEAE  BEML LT REREL
Tao were appointed as independent non-executive director ER2019FNANBEZTEAS
on 11 December 2019. S IFHITESE ©

There was no amounts paid or payable by the Group to the REBREAEFIOATHETIPE

directors or any of the 5 highest paid individuals set out in 5% B = B M A = 245 S8 A A T A

note 9 below as an inducement to join or upon joining ® - EREBIEMASIIARRR]

Company or the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. AL E R R - HERBEB

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emolument E-FAMBESHENRENRE

during the year. EfAIME -
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REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the 5 individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2019:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other
three (2019: three) individuals are as follows:

9 EEHMAL

fEsHmm B M ALTF 2802019
¢ 2HB)RES  HEFMRWEsE

o HRAEM3H AL (20195 : 358)
E’J T AAEES BN ¢

2020 2019
2020 fF 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Salaries and other emoluments e N E M SN 1,212 1,018
Discretionary bonuses E’] [EIEAL 103 192
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGHEIHE R 8 96

1,323 1,306

The emoluments of the three (2019: three) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

3% (2019F 3% ) R FMA LA
HFNFLUATEE -

2020 2019

2020 F 20194

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A N

Nil to HKD1,000,000 L2 1,000,000 7T 3 3
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A BRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

10 EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of RMB62,731,000 (2019: loss of RMB42,289,000)
and the weighted average of 178,278,689 ordinary shares
(2019: 135,000,000 shares) calculated as follows:

10 BRER (&H)
(a) BREXEF(EHE)

BREAXBNTHBREARR A
R EREMLEMNARE
62,731,000 (20194F : 538 A
R %% 42,289,000 7T ) K& 3@ A% Hn
T ¥ 15 8178278689 A% (2019
F 1 135000,0000%) 5t & + E5t
C N

2020 2019

2020 20194

shares shares

B fix

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 731 A1 BB 27 1,000 1,000
Effect of capitalisation issue BEARL BT % &

(note 21(a)(iii)) (B 5E 21 Q)Gi)) 134,999,000 134,999,000
Fffect of share issuance R BITHIRE 43,278,689 -
Weighted average number of K12 A31 BHRYE @A

ordinary shares at 31 December hnEFI988 178,278,689 135,000,000

(b) Diluted earnings per share

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares issued.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FE VBRI

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(BRBBEFIEIN - HUARKETIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 % BERRE
Office
Motor equipment
vehicles and others Total
WARME
RE R HAM HEt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREEFIT AREFTT AREFIT
Cost: AN -
At 1 January 2019 72019F1 A1 R 1,123 454 1,577
Additions NE - 998 998
Disposals HeE (213) (213)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31H K
1 January 2020 2020F1 H1H 1,123 1,239 2,362
Additions NE - 206 206
At 31 December 2020 R 2020912 A31H 1,123 1,445 2,568
Accumulated depreciation: R iTE :
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1 8 (371) (259) (630)
Charge for the year FRHB (278) (330) (608)
Written back on disposals R ) - 21 21
At 31 December 2019 and M2019F12 A31 B X
1 January 2020 2020F1 A1 H (649) (378) (1,027)
Charge for the year FRHkR (278) (606) (884)
At31 December2020 20206 12A3NH  (92) 984 (1.911)
Net book value: BRE FE -
At 31 December 2020 2020 12 A31H 196 461 657
At 31 December 2019 MR2019F12 A31 H 474 861 1,335
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AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(BRBBEFIEIN - HUARKETIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

186

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 12 FREEE
Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is BHEANEBREARBANBEEER
presenting as below: oy
Advertising
spaces and
billboards Office Total
BEER
BEER WAE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBFT
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1 H 18,479 3,268 21,747
Reassessment/remeasurement B aLd EH S
(note (i) (HaE i) (1,087) (540) (1,627)
Lease expiry HEEm (3,887) - (3,887)
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 431 B K
1 January 2020 20201 A1 H 13,505 2,728 16,233
Lease expiry HEEm (13,505) - (13,505)
At 31 December 2020 7202012 431 H - 2,728 2,728
Accumulated depreciation: ZEFHITE :
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1 8 (5,542) (831) (6,373)
Charge for the year F AR (8,074) (614) (8,688)
Written back on lease expiry HEEmEFEE 3,887 - 3,887
At 31 December 2019 and R2019F 12 A31B K
1 January 2020 20201 A 1H (9,729) (1,445) (11,174)
Charge for the year FRHkR (3,776) (715) (4,491)
Written back on lease expiry 8 & & R B O] 13,505 - 13,505
At31 December2020  M2020% 1273318 - S 2160) ... (2160
Net book value: BREAE
At 31 December 2020 202012 431 H - 568 568
At 31 December 2019 2019F 12 A31H 3,776 1,283 5,059
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(M) The Group leases advertising spaces and billboards and an
office expiring from 16 to 36 months. All leases include an
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated.
None of the leases includes variable lease payments.

(i) Reassessment and remeasurement of right-of-use assets for
the year ended 31 December 2019 were mainly due to future
rental fee or rental period adjustments.

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised
in profit or loss is as follows:

12 EREEE(E)
izt -

i) AEEHEEEMRESEUR—
fAwnrzE HEBAM6eZ=36EAR
B TEMER SR EEMAON
B ERNETEERTA RS o B
EmAEREZHAEH -

iy BEEREEEHZ2019F12831H
HFEZFEREEEDEEHANE
AL S FAEAFE -

E yr-‘ TE ﬁ@ﬂ/b\mfﬂ Zsﬂilga

DATEAT ¢
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARKBTT

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME

118 613

Details of total cash outflow for leases and the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out in notes 16(d) and 19,
respectively.

FREHERe R BENREEARE
F|Hf A ﬁTﬁE’\J# 18 5 Bl & 5 Bt 5
16(d) &2 19 ©
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e SRR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

13 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RAHEBRATARE
Proportion of ownership interest
FrEgstfl
Particulars of Group's
Place of incorporation issuedand  effective Heldbythe  Heldbya Principal
Name of company and business paid up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary activity
BRTR  AREN ARE WEAR
NAER AR ER LY BREAFE ERAE BB b TEEH
Inspiring Chance Holding Limited British Virgin Islands USS1 100% 100% - Investment holding
AERLHSE (B30 REER
Shining Glow Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100% - 100% Investment holding
Bl AT REER
lcon Media (note) Guangzhou, the PRC RMB71,960,000 100% - 100% Integrated multimedia
advertising services
KALES (FHE) HEEN ARHET71,9600007C GRS RERSRY
Note: Icon Media is a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC Wit RKEMEEA—RERS BRI
and the official name is in Chinese. The English translation of BWEPE  HEAEBAPX -
the name is for reference only. HEB B GEREHRSE -
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FE VBRI
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 EZREMEKRFE
2020 2019
2020 £ 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

Ft et ARBTRT AREBTET

Current TE
Trade debtors 5 KRR 155,401 42,872
Less: Credit loss allowance T {E R EHE 22(a) (905) (522)
Subtotal NE 154,496 42,350
Deposit and prepayments MEBK AR K
for media costs BT FE 17,294 22,934
Rental and services deposits e MiREiEe 702 2,668
Deferred listing expenses ERE EmRS - 10,286
Prepayments for income tax FT{5 5 e T8~ F08 20(a) = 3,255
Others Hib 10,010 1,582
Less: loss allowance of other A E b eI R IE
receivables E B R (2,380) (1,500)
Subtotal /NE 25,626 39,225
180,122 81,575
Rental deposits might be recovered after more than one year. Hemer R —FEKE - ik
All of the trade and other receivables apart from rental EBRINNFTE B 5 K E b W FRIE
deposits are expected to be recovered or recognised as FRER —F AR ERRAX

expense within one year.
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AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 14 EFREMEBWRTRIE(E)

(a) Ageing analysis (@) BRERZ AT
As at 31 December 2020, the ageing analysis of trade R2020F12A318  EHEIK
receivables, based on the date of revenue recognition IR EER YW B B 5
and net of loss allowance, is as follows: EERENREITET
2020 2019
2020 FF 20194F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Within 1 month —fEARA 41,897 34,573

1to 3 months —=={AA 53,055 6,000

Over 3 months =EARE 59,544 1813
154,496 42,350

Trade receivables are due within 15 to 180 days from 2 5 R FRIE N R W B E

the date of revenue recognition. Further details on the REISE18B0B AR B

Group’s credit policy are set out in note 22(a). AEEEFEABERNE —TFHIB

R RE 22()

15 RESTRICTED DEPOSITS WITH A BANK 15 FRE-BRITHZREEK
As at 31 December 2020, the restricted deposits amounting 7202012 A31 8 - —fARITHE
to RMB7,000 was required by a bank for capital fund account. SHRPERZREITFRARE 7000
As at 31 December 2019, the restricted deposits with a bank JC o M20196 124318 » /AP B
amounting to RMB7,342,000 was required by the court due to R — RFDAH BRFHE—RHIR
a litigation dispute. The litigation was closed in 2020, and no 1TH) R #1F ;R A K ¥ 7,342,000
further such restricted deposits were required. JL o AR FAC 2020 F 53R - B/A

BXMBEBXRBITFR
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FE VBRI
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 16 BERBRETEEY
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERBESEEYEE
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

Cash at bank RITIR® 14,552 28,841
Cash on hand FHERE 14 [
14,566 28,852
At 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents placed 2020 12 A31 8B » FHRH
with banks in the mainland China amounted to AT HE MRS EE
RMB12,218,000 (2019: RMB28,604,000). Remittance of Y B A R ®122180007T (2019
funds out of mainland China is subject to the relevant £ AR ¥286040007T ) ° #E
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control REANMHEEESEETE
promulgated by the PRC government. B 28 A ) A8 B8 SN EE B I AR Al
K AR -
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AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 16 RERRESEEY (&)
(b) Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before taxation (b) BRBLADER(F5E) @
to cash (used in)/generated from operations: (FTH) FrERESMNYE :
2020 2019
2020 F 20194
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

fitat AR®BTR ARETT

Profit/(loss) before taxation BREADEF(E8) 85,683 (51,555)
Adjustments for: BUATEEEHRE
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment — W% BENKE 6(c) 884 608
— Right-of-use assets —EAEEE 6(c) 4,491 8,688
Recognition/(reversal) of credit B RNFIRER

losses allowance for trade BREE

receivables wR/(BE) 6(c) 383 81
Credit losses allowance for other Hfth fE IR S

receivables BREE 6(c) 880 1,500
Investment income REBA 4 - (28)
COVID-19-related rent concessions B UL ERA) COVID-19 4878

received He TR (2,406) -
Foreign exchange loss/(gain) SMNEEE, (W) 5 7 (150)
Loss arising from disposals of HEME - BB &

property, plant and equipment HBER - 2
Changes in working capital: EEESEE:
Decrease in restricted deposits FHE—ERTH

with a bank X R I FOR D 7,335 -
Increase in trade and other B 5 REAMENK

receivables FIELE N (103,065) (12,664)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other B 5 [ H th fE 018

payables and contract liabilities UREHEE

GRib) /10 (46,666) 95,122

Cash (used in)/ generated from K& (i) /FMBEE
operations (52,474) 41,442
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REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities:

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the table below
details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of

(BRBBEMEIN - HAAREIIR)

16 BeRATEEY (F)

(c)

%ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁﬁéiﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ

REAVBHRERSENES
S TREASERMEABDE
EMBEEZHFE BRAe
FIFReEE  MELRDEL
MBEDAREESRENANKER
TRENAKEGSETRE

ROBRBELRDRSREN

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. afE-
Lease
liabilities
HESE
RMB'000
ARBTT
Balance at 1 January 2019 7201951 A1 BHEER 14,359
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRESE
Accrual of interest FEET A 613
Payment of lease liabilities HEABNK (7,830)
Payment of interest =X RE (613)
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSRELHEE (7,830)
Other changes: Hith % 5
Reassessment/remeasurement EREERETE (1,627)
Balance at 31 December 2019 72019512 A31 A& 4,902
Balance at 1 January 2020 7202051 A1 BH&E 4,902
Changes from financing cash flows: MERSRESE
Accrual of interest FEET A 118
Payment of lease liabilities HEBGBENK (4,232)
Payment of interest FERK 118
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSRELEEE (4,232)
Balance at 31 December 2020 72020512 A 31 HHAEER 670
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AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(BRBBEFIEIN - HUARKETIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 16 BERIREZEEY (&)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases:

(d) HERSHRHAHE:

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREFIT

Within operating cash flows REEEEREN 118 613

Within financing cash flows REEERESREN 4,232 7,830

Total cash outflow for leases HERSRLARRE 4,350 8,443

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 ESRHEHMENLRKIE

2020 2019

2020 20194

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AREFIT

Trade payables B 5 ENIE 70,747 98,168

Other tax payables H b {718 997 1616

Payroll payables B TE 1,198 1,016
Provision for litigation AR E R

compensation - 1,778

Others Hi 2,384 18,370

75,326 120,948

All of trade and other payables as at 31 December 2020 are
expected to be settled within one year or are repayable on

demand.

The credit period granted by the suppliers is between 10 and

120 days.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

As of the end of each of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as

17 BESREMENEGE)

BEEREHMR  EFRMARER
BERREMRREONOT

follows:
2020 2019
2020 & 2019 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE AR®ETL
Within 1 month — (@A A 13,986 10,554
1to 3 months —ZE= =& A 5,579 38,687
Over 3 months =AU E 51,182 48,927
70,747 98,168
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 18 GHERE
2020 2019
2020 & 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETRT ARETT
Services fees received in advance BWE PR IR E

from customers

8,636 8,781

Services fees received in advance from customers are
recorded as contract liabilities in the consolidated statements
of financial position at the time of receipt. Revenue from
provision of services is recognised according to the
accounting policy set out in note 1(p).

BUREPHRBERKRRE LSS
MBRAREE/ENAE - =_H
AR PSR AR IR P 52 1 (o) PREL Y &
ATBURHER ©
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AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

18 CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 18 EHEE(E)
Movements in contract liabilities EHEEET
2020 2019
2020 fF 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

At the beginning of the year F4]) 8,781 4,188
Decrease in contract liabilities as AERE T AFETAE L
a result of recognising revenue BENFANEERH
during the year that was included aHaERD>
in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (2,257) (4,164)
Increase in contract liabilities as EFEWRIBE RS 4
a result of receipt in advance BEEN 2,112 8,757
8,636 8,781
19 LEASE LIABILITIES 19 HEAE
At 31 December 2020, the lease liabilities were repayable as 202012 A31H - EEEMHEE
follows: BERT :
2020 2019
2020 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTT

Within 1 year —FR 670 4,093
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFRN - 809
670 4,902
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FE VBRI
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

20 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED 20 FEMBRRRAEH
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) #E M AR K EDEH B
statements of financial position represents: ig :
2020 2019
2020 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT ARBTT

At the beginning of the year F1) (3,236) 4,729
Provision for Hong Kong Profits tax ~ FRN& B 1S T B 5

for the year (note 7(a)) (H1aE (7a) = 19
Provision for PRC income tax FRFPEIFTEHRHE

for the year (note 7(a)) (K15 (7a)) 13,277 -
Under-provision for PRC income BEFERETE

tax in respect of prior years (Ki7E (7a))

(note 7(a)) 316 -
Income tax paid during the year FHNENMER (2,919) (7,984)
At the end of the year FR 7,438 (3.236)
Representing: 3
Prepaid current tax under trade and B2 5 & H th fE Y 7118

other receivables (note 14) BVER® IR (Mfat 14) - (3,255)
Current tax payables FE < BN ER R 18 7,438 19

7,438 (3,236)
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AU ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

20 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED 20
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets recognised

mEMBRRRAEH (&)

(b) EEIBELEREEE

() Movement of each component of deferred (i) EEHEBEEKSAKL S
tax assets By & B
The component of deferred tax assets recognised FRELZE 2020 FF K2 2019 12
in the consolidated statements of financial A3VHIEFE #5680
position and the movements during the year T AR O 3R HE SR A 4R FE 7 18
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: BERMBREE D & H &
LU
Provision for
Payablesand  Creditloss litigation
Accruals  allowance compensation Others Total
BRFUER i Eie
EiEBR  BARG  RERG Bt Eh
RMB000 RMB1000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMBO000
ABBTL  ARBTR  ARBTR ARBTR  ARETR
At January 2019 R019F1A1H - 150 401 370 91
Credited/(charged) toprofitorloss  3FAJE% /(B B&R)
(note 7(0) (Wit 7a) 9186 35 4 (300) 9285
At31 December 2019 and RO9ENANER
1 January 2020 NWNE1R1H 9,186 505 445 70 10,200
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (BEZNR)/FAES
(note7(a) (Wit 7e) (9,186) 316 (449) () 9359)
At 31 December 2020 RNFNA3E - 81 - 2 847
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REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(n), the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB19,500,000 (2019: RMB14,747,000) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire
under current tax legislation.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

According to the Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") Law and
its implementation rules, dividends receivable by non-
PRC corporate residents from PRC enterprises are
subject to withholding income tax at 10%, unless
reduced by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits
earned since 1 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2020, deferred tax liabilities in
respect of the dividend withholding tax relating to the
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiary
was not recognised as the Company controls the
dividend policy of the subsidiary.

Based on the assessment made by management as at
31 December 2020, it was determined that the
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiary
would not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

)

(c)

(d)

(BRS=BEAIEIN - HUAARKEIITR)

MBRRRAER (&)

AERELEHREE

RIBEMIEE (TSRS RHECE -
AEEWEZFHIBEEA
R %19,500,0007C (20194 © A
R ¥ 14,747,000 70 ) TR IR LR
BEE  REREMABHEA
EHEERREBTARAIEARR
JEER B A AT FA AR SE B 18 o
BIBRITHE  MBABETE
EIERER ©

AERELEHBARE

BEBECEXEH(LEMRS
BDERHEBEBGED - EPE
EERMBE2008F1 A1HE
FRER 8% A1) iy R UL A AR BT b 3
BB - BIEI0% M MIBINFTE
o BRIEEBIFIEA S BER
%o

MR2020F 128318 BEEAR
7] BB B A B R 2 TR & FI 89
REBBMMOELEHEEER
R YRR AR T
Z MY B A Bl AR BEUR o

HERNERER2020F12A31H
EH RIS - EBEEAA TR
Bl B A &l ok 9 ks A =
] A RIEEE o
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e SRR A

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a)

200

Share capital

(i) Authorised share capital of the Company

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

21

BEX - RERKRE
(&N

RATHEERAE

Number of Nominal value

shares of shares
RGO E IR0 E{E
HKS
BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ &IXE{E 0018 7TZ
AR
As at 24 April 2019 7201954 H24 8
(dated of incorporation) (zEfpkxz 2 B ER) 38,000,000 380,000
Addition NE 1,962,000,000 19,620,000
As at 31 December 2019 %2019 } 2020 F
and 2020 12H31H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman KRB 20195 4 H24H

Islands under the Companies Law as an exempted
company with limited liability on 24 April 2019
with an initial authorised share capital of
HKS$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares with a

par value of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing of the
shareholders passed on 11 December 2019, the
authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$380,000 to HK$20,000,000 by
the creation of 1,962,000,000 new shares with a
par value of HK$0.01 each to rank pari passu with

the then existing shares in all respects.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

(ii) Issued and fully paid share capital of the

Company

21 BEXR - BERKRE (E)

(a) BRAE(E)

(i) ARAREBITRAERE

Number of Nominal value

shares of shares
RHE R IR EE
HKS
BT

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each S JRE{E001E7T .2

iR

At 31 December 2019 7R2019F 12 A31 H 1,000 10
Effect of capitalisation issue (i) & AL 31 THIRZZ (i) 134,999,000 1,349,990
Issue of ordinary shares EITEBIY 45,000,000 450,000
At 31 December 2020 720205 12 A 31 H 180,000,000 1,800,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at general
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual

assets.

The Company allotted and issued 1,000 shares
during the year ended 31 December 2019 with
par value of HK$10, equivalent to RMB8.77 to its
shareholders, for a total consideration of
RMB48,731,400, equivalent to HK$55,360,000.

Pursuant to a written resolution of the
shareholders of the Company passed on 11

BERFE AR ERRA
RERNOKRES  XHER
AR BIBCR K& 55 A
hE—F - A EBRE
ARBHRBEETHEAR
[FISHER o

7B A E2019F12A831H
WEFEE  ARAIRERE
fid 2% K2 3217 1,000 I & AR TH
BERIOBITL(HERAR
#8770 R - HER
B A A R #487314007C
(FEE H 55,360,000/ 7T ) °

RIE A DA IR R 2019 F
2A N BRANEERZ

=

December 2019, an aggregate of 134,999,000 22 A $£134,999,000 A%

shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at
par value to the shareholders on the principal
register of member of the Company in the

Cayman Islands on 13 January 2020.

i% BB & 00178 T B I 19
B ERENETTA
51202051 A13B &R A
RASHETEREAM
ERRRE o
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FE M RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(BRBAEPTIEIN - HLANRETIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

202

(ii) Issued and fully paid share capital of the
Company (Continued)

The shares of the Company were listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 14
January 2020, with a total number of 180,000,000
shares, among which 45,000,000 shares (25% of
the total number of shares of the Company) were
issued to the public. The gross proceeds received
by the Company from the global offering were
approximately HK$62,550,000 (equivalent to

RMB55,476,000).

(iii) Capitalisation issue

Pursuant to a written resolution of the
shareholders of the Company passed on 11
December 2019, an aggregate of 134,999,000
shares of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at
par value to the shareholders on the principal
register of member of the Company in the

21

X - ERkKRE ()

(a) BRA&(E)

(ii)

(i)

AAFERITRBERAE
(%)

a1 R 20205 1 B
YEBEBBHERSME
PR A RIGEM £ ffn 42
2 /180,000,000 % + H b
45,000,000 i (15 &R 2~ 8] IR
DHEBH 25%) BT T A
T ARNAEEHBER
BB RBBEOR
62,550,0007% 7T (#8 & 1 A
R 55,476,0007T) °

BERBT

RBAR R BN 2019F
12A 11 BEANERRZ
2 0 A ££134,999,000 i%
A& E B &001 78 TR 5
EREEEERETTS
5120201 B13B AR A

Cayman Islands on 13 January 2020. RRAEHSEEZRRAM
LFHIRRER -

The table below sets out the number of shares TERHFINERETIED
issued after capitalisation issue: BT EE -
Ordinary shares issued at 2019 12 431 H

31 December 2019 EETHERR 1,000
Effect of capitalisation issue BREBETIRE 134,999,000

135,000,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FE VBRI
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 21 BX  RERRKRE (F&)
(Continued)
(b) Movements in component of equity (b) AN EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing AREBFEERZSHAKT LR
balances of each component of the Group's FHRFRZERE NGRS RE
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated HEEFE - ARNTINEVEE
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes REVE B 4B A 2B > Z &Y 5F
in the Company's individual components of equity BEY T -
between the beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:
Share Share Accumulated  Exchange
capital  premium loss reserves Total

Bx  RHEE RHER  EiRk EH)
RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO0O
ARBTT AR®TR ARETR ARETT ARETR

At 24 April 2019 R2019F4 A 248

(date of incorporation) (kv RE) * _ _ _ x
Sharejssuance ... B@%G S WPl S SO LELD
Loss for the year FREE - - (14747) - (14747)
QOther comprehensive income HinzEla - - - (197) (197)
Totalcomprehensiveincome _ 2EKa#E S ORI L/ 097) . (4944
At 31 December 2019 and BH019FE 12 A3AR

1 January 2020 200%F1A18 -+ 48,731 (14,747) (197) 33,787
Share issuance R 3eT 159 43,135 - - 44731
Loss for the year FRER - - (4753) - (4753)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2 EE - - - (1314) (1314)
Towl comprehensiveincome  ZEMmB@E S S w3 .. 1314 .. (6067).
At 31 December 2020 R2020F 124318 1,59 91,866 (19,500) (1511) 72451
*  The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000. * ZBRERTSEIRARE

1,000 7T ©
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AU ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolutions
of Icon Media dated 15 April 2019, share premium
of RMB16,810,000 of Icon Media was capitalised to
its share capital.

The share premium at 31 December 2020
represented premium arising from capital
injection made by shareholders to the Company.

Under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands, the
funds in the Company’s share premium account
are distributable to the equity shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

(ii) Statutoryreserve

According to the PRC Company Law, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
transfer 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under the PRC accounting
regulations, to statutory reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The
transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve can be used to reduce previous
years' losses, if any, and may be converted into
capital in proportion to the existing equity interest
of investors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations
with functional currencies other than the RMB
presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in
note 1(q).

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the difference between
(1) the total consideration of RMB48,731,000 due
from the Company’s shareholders arising from
reorganisation; and (2) the aggregate amount of
share capital and share premium of Icon Media of
RMB36,824,000 prior to reorganisation.

(d) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate amounts of
reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB70,855,000,
which comprises of share premium offset by
accumulated losses and exchange reserves of the
Company.

(BRS=BEAIEIN - HUAARKEIITR)

21 EX - #ERRKRE ()

(c)

(d)

RENEERAZE(E)
(iii) E R {EHE

[ER FRERRERER®
AARBZIEEUAINE
BIERINEEENEINE
5 2 B %5 R B P B SME
ZR-RBHEIOIRENE
Q) I ERTEUR BRI

(iv) HibRE

HibfdEis () EA8EE
WARAIRREBRKE
AR #48731,0007T + K (2)
EHAATRAEERRAE K&
BhaEReEARK
36,824,000 7T 2 FEIHY Z 58 ©

A7 Ik

20205 12 A31H @ Alt ok
TAAAEERROEERRE
#)5 N R #70,8550007C © B
RRARE R EE RIER #f
IR DR (E ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRBBEMEIN  HAAREIIR)

21 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(e) Capital management

(f)

206

The Group's primary objective when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholders returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Dividends

The board has resolved not to declare any dividends for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group declared and paid a dividend of
RMB30,000,000 in August 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Exposure to credit, liquidity and currency risks arises in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

(a) Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is
primarily attributable to trade and other receivables. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and restricted deposits with a bank is
limited because the counterparties are banks with high-
credit-quality, for which the Group considers to have
low credit risk. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade and other receivables

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 180 days from the date
of revenue recognition. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

22 2REBREEREBMEEND
REE

AEBE-—REBBER P RER -
mBESREBER o NEE I
FRBAAERANEBAREE I
FREMNEREAREERRRED
FHNR T e

(a) EARE

ERERERZEF RERT
HEHNEBMERSEELH
BEENRR - NEENER
T EREE S NEMER
RE - AEEEERE MRS
FEVMEERR —ERTHX
REIFRAELENERERSB
R EAXZUFREELER
HEERTT AKERSEER
RREE - ERETBEER
B UHEERHHEEARE
) FHE o

AEBYEEHREMERMS
HAKEeEEERER -

B35 RHEEYRE

AEECHIEEERREER
KB TEEEZERHERA
ETERNREFPEETEARE
AFHE - 2 MEEHER
Fi@ER B Rt s & B Al
B REE ) - WE B R A B
ERPREPEEXBMLL
KEIRIBENER - B 5 BUGK
IHA R B HAREET 180 B IR
B - AEEREITEMER
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AU ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Creditrisk (Continued)
Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in industries or countries in which the customers
operate. Significant concentrations of credit risk
primarily arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the reporting
period, 12% (2019: 23%) and 86% (2019: 25%) of the
total trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the traditional offline media advertising services
business segment.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivable
and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs and 12-month ECLs, respectively, which is
calculated using a provision matrix. As the Group’s
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's different
customer segments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE ISR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Creditrisk (Continued)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

22 2REBREEREBMEEND
REE(E)

(a) fEAEREE)

B R EAMmEYRE (&)

The following table provides information about the TREIEAEFGE 5 FEW
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade TR 1= F R b & 78 B = A
receivables: BB

As at 31 December 2020
7202012 831H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rates amount allowance

BHEREE RELE BERE
%  RMB'000  RMB'000
BAL AR®TR ARMTR

Current (not past due) BIER (R@ER) 0.28% 111,624 307
Less than 3 months past due BE VR 3ME A 0.71% 38,224 273
Over 3 months but less than BHI3EA LR
9 months past due PRofEA 2.38% 5,355 127
Over 9 months but less than BEOME AN B
12 months past due P 121E A 54.21% - -
Over 12 months but less than B@E 2B AL LB
24 months past due DR 241 A 100% 198 —*
155,401 707
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AU ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Creditrisk (Continued)

210

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

22 SREREERERMEEND
REE(E)

(a) fEAEREE)

BE R EAMEWRE (&)

As at 31 December 2019
72019812 A31H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rates amount allowance
EHEEEX RERE - BRES
% RMB'000 RMB'000
Aot ARBTT ARETRT
Current (not past due) BIES (R HR) 0.38% 37,632 143
Less than 3 months past due BELR3EA 1.31% 4520 59
Over 3 months but less than BEEAL LR
9 months past due PRofEA 2.75% 398 11
Over 9 months but less than @EOE AL LB
12 months past due L1218 A 8.70% 164 1*
Over 12 months but less than BEI12EAN LB
24 months past due DI 241 A 100% 158 158
42872 372
* The Group's loss allowance included expected credit * AEENBERBDBEAR

losses and individual impairment. The individually
impaired trade receivables as at 31 December 2020
amounted to RMB198,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB150,000), which were related to two customers (31
December 2019: one) whose settlements are in doubt.
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FE M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(BRBAEPTIEIN - HANRETIR)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 SRERMEEREMEENAD
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) AEE(E)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) =AM (&)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The Group used judgement in assessing the expected
credit loss rate and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, mainly based on the ageing of
overdue trade receivables, historical payment profiles
and the corresponding historical credit losses rate of the
Group’s customers, current market conditions and
forecast of future economic conditions, and with
reference to expected credit loss rates of comparable
companies in the same industry at the end of each
reporting period.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of

B R EAMmEYRE (&)

AEEERFHEEMERESLX
B 1 Hh #  3E 2 BXUR RORUE
AENBAE DEERES
BERRAEBRFPNBRE
Z MR RER - BE LA
ANMBRELERERE |
SIS R RAEBEAR S IEA
WHERRTEAR L RETR
HIERERE -

FREEZRYGKAEBEBENE

trade receivables during the year is as follows: BREREEZEHNT
Loss
allowance
BiEREE
RMB'000
ARETTT
Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019F 1 H1 BN 603
Impairment losses reversed during the year & A2 3 [0 )5 (B &5 18 81)

Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019F 12 A31H X

and 1 January 2020 202091 A1 BW&E s 522
Impairment losses recognised during the year A BE SR R B 5 18 383
Balance at 31 December 2020 720204 12 A 31 B4 905

2020 FFH KAV AIEBREEERAR

211



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the Company’s management
and directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group's policy is
to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using
contractual rates) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

22 2REAKREERSREENA
REE(E)

(b)

REE S

AEBEAFOERZEERA
BEEARGHMREEE BN
ReBRETERRENEE
ERARNERNESFLR
W R EEE THERES
B RAREARRERENE
S - AKRERERSE S
ERERDESFLNEET
fEERVNITR - ARERE#
Frot R IR W e M JE E BB
BEARRHAMNBRERE
NENEEHALRHARBDE S

== N7 o

™ s

TRERARENFITESR
BERREMRNGB NSO
HIER  ZFERDERALY
AERA2RE(BEMAGL
MEFTERF SN RAEE
WERM &P A

As at 31 December 2020
R2020512A318

Morethan ~ More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Tyearor  lessthan  lessthan Carrying
on demand 2years 5years Total amount

-y —FH0E WENL
REX EmEAT BEEUT act REE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT ARBTR ARETRT AREBTR AR%T:R
Lease liabilites HERE 782 - - 782 670
Trade and other payables BHREMENFA 75,326 - - 75,326 75,326
76,108 - - 76,108 75,996
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FE VBRI
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 SRERMEEREMEENAD
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) AEE (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REBESREMR (&)

As at 31 December 2019
R2019F 128311

Morethan ~ More than
Within -~ Tyearbut ~ 2yearsbut
1 yearor less than less than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years Total amount
—FR% —F0E WENML
REL BRENT BRFUT st REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTRT ARETT ARETR

Lease liabllities HERE 4288 847 - 5,135 4,902

Trade and other payables BARAMENTIR 120948 - - 120948 120948
1252% 847 S0 1585

(c) Currencyrisk () EXE

Individual companies within the Group has limited REBE A ERIA 7/ INE R

foreign currency risk as most of the transactions are BR - THERKE DR 5HH A

denominated in the same currency as the functional HEELEFENNEETEERN

currency of the operations in which they relate. MHRE®E -
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AU ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

(d) Fairvalue

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FE VBRI
For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - HAAREETIR)

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 22 THEREERSHMEEND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) AEE(E)
(d) Fair value (Continued) (d DAREEE)
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair BARBEFTENESREER
value (Continued) BE(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NABEER (E)
Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2020 categorised into
2020 R20205 12831 BK
}}Q\zozoﬂz ’Aﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁtﬂ?
12A318 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

NAREE £-8 E=R F=4
RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR AR®Tn ARBTR

Recurring fair value measurement ~ EEMAREEE

Other financial assets: EsmEE:

Project investment BRRE 2,728 - - 2,728

Note: Bizt -

() During the year end at 31 December 2020, there were () REZE2020F12H31BIEF
no transfers between level 1 and level 2 or transfer into B F—REE-_RZEL
or out of level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise BEMER TESAXE
transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the HE=ZR - ARBEZKRETS
end of the reporting period in which they occur. REBEERAEBEBR ZHE

B MEHRTERGRER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE IS HRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel of the

Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

23 EXEBLEXRS

(a)

FTEEEASHM

AEETZERASNFH(E
M E8 BN T AR

BEEMFIBE)OT :
2020 2019
2020 & 20194
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AREBTET

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 2,945 1,632
Retirement scheme of define TE R FGRIRETEY
contribution 8 81
2,953 1,713
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (note 6(b)). HEN@EEE A B TR | (3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

23 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b) Other material related parties transactions
and balances

)

(iif)

The Group rendered media services to related
parties that included companies that were owned
or under significant influence by a close family
member of the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the board of the Group. The service
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020
was RMB4,521,000 (2019: RMB5,956,000) and the
amount of contract liabilities at 31 December 2020
was RMB243,000 (2019: RMB813,000).

The Group purchased media resources from
related parties that included companies that were
owned or under significant influence by a close
family member of the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the board of the Group. The resource
procurement for the year ended 31 December
2020 was RMB2,316,000 (2019: RMB2,501,000) and
the amount payable at 31 December 2020 was
RMB49,000 (2019: RMB93,000).

The Group leased office premises from related
parties that included companies that were owned
or under significant influence by a close family
member of the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the board of the Group. The rental
and management fee for the year ended 31
December 2020 was RMB954,000 (2019:
RMB939,000) and the deposit amount receivable
at 31 December 2020 was RMB203,000 (2019:
RMB210,000).

(BRS=BEAIEIN - HUAARKEIITR)

23 EXEBRLEXRZ (&)

(b)

HEXRBEL RS R

(iif)

NEEMBEERRMHEE
RS - BIEHAE BIER
IR R 3k BT R BEAK
BHAEMNRARNHEARSE
YENNRAR - BHE
202012 A31 BIEFE
R KeE B ARE
4,521,0007C (20194 + AR
5,956,000 7C) * 1A 2020
FNANEMNEHEES
25 AR 243,0007T(2019
F: AR¥8130007T) °

NEBABESBEEHE
B BREBAASEIER
% B 3k AT B R EEAK
BHEEMRARIKHEARS
AXENNRAR - BE
2020F 12 A31BIEFE
BEMERAARK
2,3160007C (20195 : AR
#%2,501,0007T) + B4 2020
F1NANBNENTRES
A ¥ 49,000 7T (2019 £F
AR#930007T) °

rEERBEIEERA
ERAT BERAKEE
IR E R RRE
KEHEN AR NEEA
EEAFENHRA) - H
E2020F12A318 I+ F
E-HekEBEBAAR
#5954,0007T (20194 = A
R ®9390007T ) M ®
20204 12 A 31 B HY & Y3
IR AR 2030007
(20194 = A E ® 210,000
JL) °

2020 FFH RALXAIEBREEERARE | 217



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AU ERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ 2020 4 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)  (BRBHBFTIEIN - AARETIR)

24 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 24 AFIEEHABMREK
POSITION

(Expressed in Renminbi) (UAAEHEZT)
2020 2019
2020 20194F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

ft et ARBTRT ARBTT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RITB R RRIKE —* —*
Other non-current assets EMm3EREEE 81,309 -
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEFEY 2,275 43
Other receivables H th fE W08 - 57,778
2,275 57,821
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables F At &~ T8 - 24,034
- 24,034
Net current assets REEEFEE 2,275 33,787
Total assets less current EEHEBERABAE
liabilities 83,584 33,787
Non-current liabilities knRBERE
Other non-current liabilities HiIEREaE 11,133 -
11,133 -
Net assets EERE 72,451 33,787
Capital and reserves EXRRE
Share capital f& X 21(b) 1,596 ¥
Reserves H & 70,855 33,787
Total equity ERAmE 72,451 33,787
* The balance represents amount less than RMB1,000. * HERT~DE LN ARE000

SR

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 # % 2020 ©F 12 A 31 BIEFE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTIES

As at 31 December 2020, the directors consider the
immediate controlling party to be Shining Icon (BVI) Limited,
while the ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr.
Chow Eric Tse To.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2020

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, and a new
standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts, which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2020 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be relevant
to the Group.

25

26

(BRBBEMEIN - HAAREIIR)

BEER&AEHR

MR2020F12 8318 EFERAARR

T B ;ﬁ %d 75 A Shining Icon (BVI)
Limited * Sx&425I1 5 BEFETE °

EEMERKEEZE2020F 12
BA31BIEFEEMNWIEET - 5
ZRAMBREBUETRAITE

@iaiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁaﬁ’éﬁ
RN A 2 E B M EIAEE 2020
Euﬂmatifﬁ*iﬁ Vli93c3
EEZEVBHRREAMEBITIN—
HIFER  BEPMBEREERF 17
¥ RBRAEL  ZEFERB(LBRIE
THIRTaE AL EFMEAIER ©

Effective for
accounting
periods
beginning

on or after
RUTBHHER
ZEBEEN
STHBEXR

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

BEMBREEEIROER] - HLRERLE

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
BRGHTEUNE 16RNER] - WX - BB KRG - BEFHSFHZFTEE

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
HRIEI7REVER] - BIEE A — BTTE IR AR

BEEs

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
EBM B ELER| 2018 F £ 2020 FIBAH 2 FEUCE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these developments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on
the consolidated financial statements.

1 January 2022
20251 A1H

1 January 2022
202F1A1H

1 January 2022

2022% 1 H1H
1 January 2022
2022%F 1 A1 H
AEEFEFHZEERINBAE
FREFEMIEREZE - BRI AL -
ZIKEIWUEJT?K Wu/(—r{ HTTKT
HIRE U BRREKBERTE -
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Four-Year Financial Summary

MENBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the T~ X &%z & B @17 M A B FEfE 2 %
Group for the last four financial years, as extracted from the #BIANBEENBEME @ Itk AEE
published audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as 7 B AMIE BZPBHE  TREE SE
appropriate, is set out below: 5,/ EF D

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019 2018 2017
2020 & 2019 4F 2018 4F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRE ARETRT ARBTRT ARBTT

Revenue W sk 268,612 150,099 208,941 143,765
Profit/(loss) before BB ATDER,(E518)
taxation 85,683 (51,555) 24,717 23,196

Income tax PR (22,952) 9,266 (6,245) (5,934)
Profit/(loss) for theyear R FI(E5E) 62,731 (42,289) 18,472 17,262

Total assets EEAR 199,495 134,369 129,444 81,687

Total liability BERE 92,070 134,650 57,242 27957
Total equity/(deficit) ()85 107,425 (281) 72,202 53,730
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